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DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE

Town of Montville

310 Norwich-New London Turnpike
Uncasville,Connecticut 06382-2599

Business: (860) 848-3030
Fax: (860) 848-1521

November 28, 2006

To: Mayor Joseph Jaskiewicz
Montville Town Council
Citizens of Montville, CT

State law requires that all local governments publish within six months of the close of each fiscal year a
complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of
licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive
annual financial report of the Town of Montville, Connecticut, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the Town of Montville.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the
information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
management of the Town of Montville has established a comprehensive internal control framework that
is designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft or misuse and to compile sufficient
reliable information for the preparation of the Town of Montville’s financial statements in conformity
with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefit, the Town of
Montville’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable
rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As
management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete
and reliable in all material respects.

The Town of Montville’s financial statements have been audited by Kostin, Ruffkess & Company,
LLC. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
statements of the Town of Montville for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, are free of material
misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
The independent auditors concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for
rendering an unqualified (“clean”) opinion that the Town of Montville’s financial statements for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent
auditors’ report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.



GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany
the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This
letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The
Town of Montville’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent
auditors.

Town Profile

The Town of Montville, located in southeastern Connecticut, was incorporated in 1786 from the Town
of New London, Connecticut, and covers approximately 42 square miles. The Town serves a
population of 19,846 and is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal properties
located within its boundaries.

The Town is governed under a Town Charter with the Town Council/Mayor form of government. The
Mayor acts as the Chief Executive Officer and the Town Council acts as the Legislative Body. Council
members are elected biennially. The Mayor is elected for a four-year termi. The Charter stipulates that
the Director of Finance supervises the Town’s financial affairs, including assessment and the collection
of taxes. The Town Meeting may overrule any action of the Town Council and may originate and enact
an ordinance. A nonbudgeted appropriation may not exceed two percent of the current tax levy
cumulatively for one fiscal year and can be passed by resolution of the Town Council provided that the
Director of Finance certifies that there are available unappropriated general fund resources in excess of
the proposed appropriation. The Town Meeting must approve any nonbudgeted appropriations in
excess of two percent of the current tax levy and all bonded indebtedness. A referendum is required for
appropriations in excess of 5% of the current tax levy.

The Town of Montville provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection; water
transmission; the construction and maintenance of highways, streets and other infrastructures; education
and recreational activities and cultural events. Sanitation services are provided through a legally
separate Sewer Authority, which functions, in essence, as a department of the Town of Montville and,
therefore, has been included as an integral part of the Town of Montville’s financial statements.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the Town of Montville’s financial planning and control.
All departments of the Town of Montville are required to submit requests for appropriation to the
Finance Director at least one hundred days before the end of the fiscal year. The Mayor utilizes this
information in the preparation of his proposed budget that must be submitted to the Town Council not
later than 75 days prior to the end of the fiscal year. The Town Council is required to hold one or more
public hearings at least sixty days prior to the end of the fiscal year and to adopt a final budget on or
before thirty days prior to the end of the current fiscal year. A five-year capital improvement plan is
similarly prepared and adopted by the Town Council in conjunction with the budget process. The
appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g. public safety), and department (e.g. fire
marshal). Department heads may make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of
appropriations between departments, however, require the approval of the Town Council. Budget to
actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for which an
appropriated annual budget has been adopted.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered
from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the Town of Montville operates.




Local economy. Primarily a suburban residential community, Montville is centrally located between
Norwich and New London in eastern Connecticut. The Town of Montyville is thirty-five miles from
Connecticut’s state capital, Hartford, and forty-five miles from Providence, RI. The Town has
experienced significant growth with the location of the Mohegan Sun Casino and Resort within its
borders.

Housing construction has slowed with only 60 new residential permits issued during fiscal year 2006,
down from 102 in 2005. This decrease reflects a regional trend in the housing market. During the
fiscal year building permits were issued for a total residential construction value of $11 million
dollars. Commercial construction values increased in 2006 to almost $22.5 million. This reflects the
onset of construction of a large 50-acre commercial development site.

There are twelve manufacturing firms located in Montville. The firms range in size from a small start-
up tool and dye maker, which has recently expanded within one of the new industrial parks, to Smurfitt
Stone, one of the world’s largest manufacturers of cardboard and paperboard. Montville is also home to
the Faria Corporation, a manufacturer and worldwide exporter of tachometers, gauges and instrument
panels.

There are two power generation plants located in Town: AES Thames is a 181 MW cogeneration
facility and NU is an 82 MW generation facility.

Finance, Insurance, Real Estate (FIRE) and services comprise 42% of the Town’s economic base.
Montville is diversified across the economic spectrum with a healthy mix of FIRE, services, heavy and
light industry and retail. Currently, approximately 300,000 square feet of gross floor area of retail
development is under construction.

An additional 300 acres of strategic land have been purchased by a prime developer. This area is
expected to be developed into a premiere waterfront mixed use development.

The Mohegan Sun Casino and Resort is located within the Town of Montville, and with the close
proximity to the Foxwoods Resort; the Town hopes to profit from development as the area continues to
develop into a recreational destination spot.

During the past ten years, government expenses have increased 69%. One of the major factors driving
this increase is the escalating cost of employee health care. Medical premiums have increased more
than 175% since 1997. Educational costs for the ten-year period have increased 52%. In addition to the
rising cost of health care and normal inflationary factors, economic issues facing the school system
include increased enrollment, additional unfunded federal and state mandates, and program
enhancements.

Long-term financial planning. Unreserved, undesignated fund balance in the general fund stands at
$6,049,413 or 11.6% of total general fund revenues. A fund balance policy recently adopted by the
Town Council calls for the undesignated fund balance to be maintained between the level of 8.5 and
17% of the Town budget. The undesignated fund balance as noted above represents 11.8% of the
Town’s budget for fiscal year 2007. The Town continues to work on a compilation of a policy and
procedure manual. Policies currently under review include purchasing procedures and tax foreclosure
guidelines.




The Town of Montville, working with area towns and the Mohegan Tribal Authority, authorized a
regional water supply program. Funding for the Town of Montville’s proportional cost was authorized
in the spring of 2004. The project is nearing completion. The Town expects the system to be fully
operational as of 7/1/07. The Town is currently revising the water rate schedule in anticipation of the
completion of the regional supply system. Upon completion, the regional system will supply the
Town’s anticipated water needs for the next twenty years.

The Town’s school renovation project authorized in 2003 continues. The renovation of the Mohegan
Elementary School is complete. Both the Montville High School and Oakdale Elementary School
renovations are now under construction. The High School renovations are scheduled for completion in
November of 2008. The Oakdale school renovations will be complete in August of 2007.

Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in demand deposits, certificates of deposit and the
State Treasurer’s investment pool. The Town is limited to existing Connecticut General Statutes as to
the investment instruments that it can purchase. Therefore, the Town’s investment policy is to
minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a competitive yield within the State’s guidelines.
The Town did not utilize fund balance for tax relief with the 2006 budget.

The Town has a comprehensive program for managing all areas of risk, which includes health and life

insurance for employees, workers’ compensation, heart and hypertension, property and casualty,

general liability, professional liability, and others including theft, performance and surety. The Town’s

internal service fund accounts for funds received from the Board of Education and Town government

operation funds for medical insurance for Town employees. During fiscal year 2006, premium

adjustments enabled the Town to fully eliminate the fund’s deficit fund balance of $981,112. As of

June 30, 2006, the internal service fund had unrestricted net assets of $155,733. The Town plans to .
continue its program and is working to maintain net assets sufficient to handle two months of medical

costs or approximately $950,000.

Relevant financial policies. The Town administration continues to work on a compilation of a Manual
of policies and procedures for the Town. The Town recently adopted a formal fund balance policy.
Other drafts under review include purchasing procedures, foreclosure guidelines, financial operations
and fundraising guidelines.

Major initiatives. The Connecticut Department of Environmental Protection has issued a General
Permit for the control of FATS, OILS, and GREASE in food preparation facilities to prevent the
discharge of fats, oils, and grease into the sanitary sewer systems. The general permit requires new
facilities to install one of two methods designed to significantly control FOG at the source. Food
preparation facilities have until July 1, 2011, to comply with conditions of the permit. The Montville
WPCA has worked with the State DEP and Town facilities to comply with the conditions of the Permit
and promote a cleaner environment.

The Connecticut DEP is implementing EPA Stormwater Phase II Program via the General Permit for
the Discharge of stormwater from Small Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4s) and applies
to Towns with urbanized areas. The program requires six Minimum Control Measures (MCMs).
Montville has submitted the Part A registration and the Part B registration (Stormwater Management
Plan) of the General Permit. Montville must submit annual reports to demonstrate the implementation
of the MCMs. Six stormwater samples must be collected from stormwater outfalls, and all MS4
outfalls must be mapped town wide by the end of 2006.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the Town Council
Town of Montville, Connecticut

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Montville,
Connecticut, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These basic financial statements are the responsibility of the Town's
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall basic financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Town of Montville, Connecticut, as of June 30, 2006, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison
for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 28, 2006,
on our consideration of the Town's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 10 through 19 is not a required part of the basic financial
statermnents but is supplementary information required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board, We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not
audit the information and express no opinion on it.
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Town of Montville, Connecticut
Page Two

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Montville, Connecticut’s basic financial statements. The introductory section and
statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The combining fund financial statements and other schedules as listed in the table of
contents have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as
a whole. The introductory section and trend information have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

New London, Connecticut
November 28, 2006




DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE

Town of Montville

310 Norwich-New London Turnpike
Unecasville,Connecticut 06382-2599

Business: (860) 848-3030
Fax: (860) 848-1521

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

The management of the Town of Montville, Connecticut, offers readers of the Town’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006.
We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that
we have furnished in our letter of transmittal.

Financial Highlights

The net assets of the Town exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $95,617,499 (net assets).
Of this amount, $13,579,454 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the Town’s ongoing obligations
to citizens and creditors.

The Town’s total net assets increased by $8,495,459. The increase was due substantially to capital asset
purchases in excess of depreciation expense. The major purchase consisted of construction in progress
relative to the ongoing school renovation project. Additional increases were realized in both capital and
operating grants for education.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $13,894,993, an increase of $607,998 in comparison with the prior year. Of this total amount,
$10,607,343 is available for spending at the Town’s discretion (unreserved fund balance).

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $6,294,413 or 12.6%
of total general fund expenditures and transfers out of $49,881,889.

The Town’s total bond/note debt decreased by $2,198,805 (7.52%) during the current fiscal year due in total
to principal payments during the year.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town’s basic financial statements. The
Town’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund
financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. All of the resources the Town has at its disposal are
shown, including major assets such as buildings and infrastructure. A thorough accounting of the cost of
government is rendered because the statements present all costs, not just how much was collected and disbursed.
They provide both long-term and short-term information about the Town’s overall financial status.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Town’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating,

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Town’s net assets changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement
for some items that will only result in cash flows in a future fiscal period (e.g. uncollected taxes and earned but
unused vacation leave).

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues (government activities) from other functions that are intended to recover
all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The
governmental activities of the Town include general government, public safety, public works, health, social
services, recreation and education. The business-type activities of the Town include a waste-operating facility
and a water transmission system.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on Exhibits A and B of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Town can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a Town’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the Town’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet
and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Town maintains 16 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental
fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances for the general fund and bonded projects fund, both of which are considered to be major funds. Data
from the other 14 governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data
for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in the
report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The Town adopts an annual budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided
for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with the authorized budget.

Proprietary Funds. The Town maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
Town uses enterprise funds to account for its Sewer Department and Water Department. Internal service funds
are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate certain costs internally among the Town’s various
functions. The Town uses an internal service fund to account for its medical benefits for its employees. Because
this service predominantly benefits governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included
within the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in
more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Sewer Department
and the Water Department. The Sewer Department is considered a major fund of the Town. The Water
Department is considered a nonmajor fund of the Town. Data for the internal service fund is also provided as a
separate column in the proprietary fund financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the
resources of those funds are not available to provide services to the Town’s constituency. The Town has two
agency funds. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information. The combining statements and supplemental schedules referred to earlier in connection
with nonmajor governmental funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information
on pensions. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on Schedules 7 and 8.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a Town’s financial position and an
important determinant of its ability to finance services in the future. The Town’s assets exceeded liabilities by
$95,617,499 at the close of the fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the Town’s net assets (83.6%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land,
buildings, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is
still outstanding. The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets
are not available for future spending. Although the Town’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of
related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources,
since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Table 1, which can be found at the end of this Management Discussion and Analysis, presents a comparative
summary statement of net assets.

A portion of the Town’s net assets that are restricted ($2.09 million) represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets ($13.58 million)
may be used to meet the Town’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

The Town’s net assets increased by $8,495,459 during the fiscal year, with net assets of governmental activities
increasing by $8,782,976 and net assets of business-type activities decreasing by $287,517.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Governmental activities. Already noted was the statement of activities purpose in presenting information on
how the Town’s net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. Governmental activities increased the
Town’s net assets by $8,782,976 during the current fiscal year. The increase in assets in governmental activities
is related in great part to construction of assets, rather than accumulation of cash or other liquid assets and can be
specifically related to the current school renovation projects. The reader should remember that the basis of
accounting used in the government-wide statement of activities excludes capital expenditures, while its revenues
include general taxes whose primary purpose is for the construction of those very assets or their related debt
service.

51.0% of the revenues were derived from property taxes, followed by 40.6% from program revenues, then 5.9%
from other unrestricted grants and finally, about 2.5% of the Town’s revenue in this fiscal year was derived from
investment earnings.

Major revenue factors included:

e Property tax revenues recorded for fiscal year 2006 reflect an increase in the Town’s tax rate of
approximately 2.7%.

e Operation grants increased due to mostly to increased state grants for education.

e Capital grants and contributions increased due to the school construction progress payments received from
the State.

e Investment earnings increased because of an increase in funds available for investment through the issuance
of debt for school renovation projects and the elimination of the fund deficit in the Town’s medical internal
service fund.

For governmental activities, approximately 68.2% of the Town’s expenses relate to education, almost 7.8% relate
to general government, over 11.3% relate to public works operations, 8.5% relate to public safety and the
remaining 4.2% relate to interest expense, health and welfare, social services, recreation and miscellaneous.

Major expense factors include:

e Employee benefit costs for both medical insurance and workers’ compensation increased approximately 22%
in fiscal year 2006.

e Oil prices increased significantly affecting the fuel and heating budgets for all departments. In addition, a
large utility rate increase on electricity was approved and applied during last year, again, affecting all
departments.

e Pension costs increased approximately 32% for general government employees and 41% for police
personnel.

® A general wage increase of approximately 3.5%, for general government, public safety and public works
expenses increased expenditures in 2006. Additional increases in public works expenses were predominately

due to an increase in infrastructure repair.

e Education increased due to general wage increases of approximately 4.5% in addition to the town wide fuel,
electric and fringe benefit costs noted previously.

e Debt service payments began on the first bond issue for the schools’ renovations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Business-Type Activities

Business-type activities decreased the Town’s net assets by $287,517. This decrease was mitigated by capital
contributions to the water fund. The key element of this decrease was on-going legal costs related to litigation
involving the lawsuit with Rand Whitney, a paperboard manufacturing company.

Table 2, which can be found at the end of this Management Discussion and Analysis, presents a comparative
look at the change in net assets.

Financial Analysis of the Fund Financial Statements

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the Town’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s
net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $13,894,993. Approximately 76.3% of this total amount ($10,607,343) constitutes unreserved fund balance
that is available for spending at the Town’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that
it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed to liquidate contracts and purchase
orders of the prior period.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Town. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund
balance of the general fund was $6,294,413, while total fund balance reached $9,268,603. As a measure of the
general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total
fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 13.0% of total general fund expenditures, while total
fund balance represents 19.3% of that same amount.

The fund balance for the Town’s general fund increased by $2,263,862 during the current fiscal year. Key
factors in this increase are as follows:

¢ Receipt of additional intergovernmental revenues due to state budget approval after finalization of the Town
budget.

¢ Investment income generated revenues higher than anticipated
¢ Tuition, special duty and disposal fees generated more revenue for service charges than projected.

e General savings throughout all budget categories.

The Bonded Projects Fund has a total fund balance of $3,206,580 at June 30, 2006. The net decrease in fund
balance during the current year in the Bonded Projects Fund was $1,594,016. The decrease was due to the
additional school construction costs funded in the prior year.

Proprietary Funds. The Town’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Net assets of the Sewer Department at the end of the year were $47.1 million, a decrease of $778,822 over the
prior year. Unrestricted net assets for the Sewer Department reflected a deficit of $819,478. The losses reflect
the ongoing legal costs for various litigation matters for the department and depreciation costs not fully funded.

Total net assets for the Water Department at the end of the fiscal year were $5.7 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The difference between the original budget and the final amended budget was $163,570. The largest additional
appropriation was for $105,000, which funded the additional demand for private duty services.

During the year, actual revenues were $50,645,751, which exceeded budgetary estimates by $1,927,096. Major
contributors were:

* A significant increase in the demand for services for police private duty, tuition and disposal fees generated
higher revenues than originally projected.

¢ Investment income higher than anticipated due to the availability of bond proceeds for investment purposes
and the elimination of the fund deficit in the Town’s internal service fund.

¢ Intergovernmental revenues were received at a higher than anticipated level.
Actual expenditures and transfers out on a budgetary basis totaled $48,456,884. Actual revenues and other
financing sources exceeded expenditures and other financing uses by $2,188,867. The adopted budget for 2006

did not include a planned use of fund balance.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The Town’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2006, amounted to $107.7 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets
includes land, building and system improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads (accepted by -
the Town since July 1, 2002), sewers and bridges. The total net increase in the Town’s investment in capital
assets for the current fiscal year was $7.2 million (excluding depreciation), an increase of 5.0% (a 10.5% percent
increase for governmental activities).

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

Construction in progress additions for the renovations of six schools.

Purchase of twelve vehicles including a three police cruisers and three new buses
Land acquisition from tax foreclosures.

Improvements to the sewer and water systems.

Table 3, which can be found at the end of this Management Discussion and Analysis, presents a comparative
look at capital assets.

Additional information on the Town’s capital assets can be found in Note III.C. of this report.

Long-term Debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town has total bonded debt outstanding of
$26,993,955. 100% of this debt is backed by the full faith and credit of the Town government.

TOWN OF MONTVILLE OUTSTANDING DEBT
General Obligation Bonds

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
006 2005 006 2005 2006 2005
General Obligation Bonds..................... $23,338.955 $25,202,760 $ 3,655,000 $ 4,040,000 2 29,24
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets and Debt Administration (Continued)

The Town’s total bonded debt decreased by $2.25 million during the 2005/2006 fiscal year due to scheduled
principle payments.

The Town of Montville continues to maintain an Aa3 rating from Moody’s Investors Service.

The overall statutory debt limit for the Town is equal to seven times annual receipts from taxation or
$211,449,042. As of June 30, 2006, the Town has a net debt of $18.9 million, well below its statutory debt
limits.,

Additional information on the Town’s long-term debt can be found in Note IIII.E.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The Town’s elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2007 budget tax
rates. One of the factors is the economy. Unemployment in the Town now stands at 4.2% versus 3.4% a year
ago. This compares with the state’s average unemployment rate of 4.9% and is .2 % lower than the New London
County average rate of 4.4%.

The Town of Montville’s 2006/2007 budget totals $51,290,586, which represents a 5.3% increase in expenditures
from the fiscal year 2006 adopted budget. The Town’s mill rate increased to 29.86 mills, a 2.7% increase in the
tax rate.

Fringe benefit costs for medical, pension and workers’ compensation are projected to increase between 8% and
20% in fiscal year 2007.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town’s finances for all those with an
interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Director of Finance, 310 Norwich-New
London Turnpike. Uncasville, CT 06382.
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EXHIBIT A

1 of2)
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2006
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
ASSETS
Current assets:
CaSH...cieeee et e $ 1,688,439 $ 420,554 $ 2,108,993
INVESHMENLS. ...ttt e e 12,265,040 12,265,040
Receivables:
Property taxes................ 543,583 543,583
Assessments/use charges . 254,903 900,434 1,155,337
Intergovernmental...........ccocvevcveierieeeeeeeeeeeeece e e 3,778,377 3,778,377
OBET. .ottt bsss et e esas b seten e e e e 231,084 266,134 497,218
Internal balances.............ccoeoveiiiiiiiiii e, 116,779 (116,779) -
Other. ..o 24,799 24,799
Total CUITENE BSSELS.....cuoverereceirerererereee ettt see s e e e e 18,903,004 1,470,343 20,373,347
Noncurrent assets:
Receivables (net):
Property taxes.....cc..ovmiiiiiiiiei e 1,245,510 1,245,510
Assessments...... e 1,338,245 1,338,245
INtergovVernmMEntal...............ocveeverieevieieesis ettt eeeneene e 2,649,640 2,649,640
Total Receivables (NEL)........coereeueemreieecereeeesreeseeece s e e e e ee 5,233,395 - 5,233,395
Advances to (from) other funds.................cooeeiiiiiiiiiiieeeeen.. 1,200,000 (1,200,000) -
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Land.......oooiiiii 1,022,518 1,098,331 2,120,849
Construction IN PIOBIESS. ....uvvv errnrerniieerieeeeieee e ianaennas 12,645,752 12,645,752
Land improvements. ...........ccoveuiveeinneiinierinieeineiiieiieeeennns 397,140 397,140
Buildings and improvements 22,280,813 14,781,944 37,062,757
Distribution and collection system....................coeevveeineien..s 32,274,203 32,274,203
Machinery and equipment................cooouviiiiiiinieieeeeeennen. 4,563,481 8,540,661 13,104,142
INfrastruCture. ... oovveee e 10,048,811 10,048,811
Total net capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)............. 50,958,515 56,695,139 107,653,654
Total NONCUITENE ASSELS......c.cvevvreerererirereretereeeseisreseee e eeaeessreeses s e ee e e 57,391,910 55,495,139 112,887,049
TOTAL ASSETS ...t rrrreerrsrrersesissssssressaessonsesressssesassens s s e e s eas 76,294,914 56,965,482 133,260,396
(Continued)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT A

@2of2)
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2006
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts Payable.............covcvuieiiieiere et e e $ 4,491,832 $ 325,553 $ 4,817,385
Accrued Habilifies.......o.ouieovieeeeiciieeeeecse et e e 106,183 183,236 289,419
Accrued interest payable.... 286,495 60,411 346,906
Unearmned FEVENUE. ..........coieiuriieieeteteee ettt e e e e e ens 53,343 53,343
Total current liabilities................ccooviiiieiiiiiii e, 4,937,853 569,200 5,507,053
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due withinone year................oooeeiviiioriciineee e 3,197,180 380,000 3,577,180
Due in more than one year 25,283,664 3,275,000 28,558,664
Total noncurrent liabilities....................ooviiiiiiniii e, 28,480,844 3,655,000 32,135,844
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ...t 33,418,697 4,224,200 37,642,897
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt................cccceeneinni. 26,910,256 53,040,139 79,950,395
Restricted for:
Other................ 1,774,190 1,774,190
Capital projects 313,460 313,460
Unrestricted.........ooooieiiii i 13,878,311 (298,857) 13,579,454
$ 42,876,217 $ 52,741,282 $ 95,617,499

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C

(1of2)
TOWN OF MONTVILLE. CONNECTICUT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2006
OTHER TOTAL
BONDED GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS
SNt e naeaan $ 1,298,797 $ $ 389,642 $ 1,688,439
INVESIMENLS.........ociricintceietri ettt sesss st sae e 11,754,933 315,503 12,070,436
Receivables:
PrOPEItY tAXES. .. cei e et e e et ee ees et e e ean ean e 1,385,350 1,385,350
Assessments/use charges 1,496,253 1,496,253
Intergovernmental..............ccoveevemrevennrvcrninvenenens 2,893,120 170,777 3,063,897
Other....c.cooevinrererr et 204,189 6,899 211,088
Due from other fUNAS........cocoiiiiiereeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeseesnsans 126,369 2,082,468 881,503 3,090,340
Advances to other funds. 1,200,000 1,200,000
Oher... ... e e e e e e 3,939 20,860 24,799

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable............... OO
Accrued payroll...........ccoovevreeinnane. rerererenenarraenn
Due to other funds.
Uneamned TEVERUE. .. ......ccovre it it e et ceecee et et e aeaeeaee s

Total Liabilities. .. ...oo.coe vt it et e et et e e e e

Fund Balances:

Reserved for:
Encumbrances. .. ........coveeeinieeaes e eee e ee e e ee e
Commitments.............ccocevervvriiinn.ans
Advance to sewer department... ........c.c.oveeveneeienieeiee e,

Unreserved, reported in:
Designated for subsequent year budget...........
General fund.............cocoovii i
Special revenue funds.............coccoii i
Capital projects funds.............c. oo it eer e e iee e e e

Total Fund Balances.....................

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES.............co.ee...

$ 17,469,830

$ 4,975,588

$ 1,785,184

$ 24,230,602

$ 1,889,961 $ 1,769,008 $ 343,626 $ 4,002,595
106,183 106,183
3,394,341 9,590 3,403,931
2,810,742 12,158 2,822,900
8,201,227 1,769,008 365,374 10,335,609
1,774,190 1,774,190
313,460 313,460

1,200,000 1,200,000
245,000 245,000
6,049,413 6,049,413
575,053 575,053

2,893,120 844,757 3,737,877

9,268,603 3,206,580 1,419,810 13,894,993

$ 17,469,830

$ 4,975,588

$ 1,785,184

$ 24,230,602

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C
(2 of2)

TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCE
TO NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30, 2006

AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
(EXHIBIT A) ARE DIFFERENT FROM THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET. THE DETAILS
OF THIS DIFFERENCE ARE AS FOLLOWS:

TOTAL FUND BALANCE (EXHIBIT C,PAGE 1)...cc.oiiuiiiiiiiieii e $ 13,894,993

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES ARE NOT FINANCIAL
RESOURCES AND, THEREFORE, ARE NOT REPORTED IN THE FUNDS:

Beginning net capital assets and current additions...........c.ceevviiiiiiiiiiiniieeiieeineneas 52,209,451
DEPreciation EXPEIISE. ... euueueinruerenereteiee e ie e ree e en et e e eee et aa e eeen i aanean (1,179,494)
Disposal 0f Capital @SSELS. ... . eeueuvuriutien et ie e e (71,442)

OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS ARE NOT AVAILABLE TO PAY FOR CURRENT
PERIOD EXPENDITURES AND, THEREFORE, ARE DEFERRED IN THE FUNDS:

Property tax, sewer use and sewer assessment interest and lien accrual.......................... 939,813
Property tax, sewer use and sewer assessment receivable - accrual basis change................ 2,769,557
School building grant receivable..........ueviuiiiiiiieiiieiee e 3,364,120
Allowance for doubtful ACCOUNES. .. ....c.ivviiiiiriiiiii e (439,175)

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS ARE USED BY MANAGEMENT TO CHARGE THE
COST OF MEDICAL INSURANCE PREMIUMS TO INDIVIDUAL DEPARTMENTS:

The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental
activities in the statement Of NEt ASSEIS. ... .viu et er ettt e et e e ee e aeaeens 155,733

SOME LIABILITIES, INCLUDING BONDS PAYABLE, ARE NOT DUE AND PAYABLE
IN THE CURRENT PERIOD AND, THEREFORE, ARE NOT REPORTED IN THE FUNDS:

Beginning long-term liabilities and current year additions..........cc.ovevviveinniniivinniinnnn.e, (30,987,972)
Long-term liability Payments.........ccuiiiiiiniiieiiriier et e eraeeteetern et een e eae e nnan, 2,507,128
Accrued interest Payable..... ..o e (286,495)
NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES.......ciuitririiiiieeiieeeeereiceenecnnennes $ 42,876,217
(Concluded)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT D

TOWN OF MONTVILLF, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

OTHER TOTAL
BONDED GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS
REVENUES:

Property taxes. $ 30,289,355 3 $ $ 30,289,355

Intergovernmental 17,219,091 4,741,381 2,263,731 24,224 203

Charges for service! 3,124,015 13,550 766,886 3,904,451

ConribULONS. .. ....ee e e e 115,650 115,650

Income from INVeStMENtS.............cooeeieiiiniie st eeeeeeeen v, 1,513,290 19,518 1,532,808

TOTAL REVENUES... ..ottt iiiiie oo aee e eee s 52,145,751 4,754,931 3,165,785 60,066,467
EXPENDITURES:
Current: .
General government 5,976,217 327,388 6,303,605
Public safety 2,886,739 25,968 2,912,707
Public works, 3,382,365 1,054,275 4,436,640
Health 150,111 150,111
Social SEIVICES. .. it e 51,675 51,675
Recreation... 241,723 241,723
Miscellaneous. . 71,222 71,222
Education.......c.ooevueiiiin e et 33,121,933 2,079,562 35,201,495
Capital OULIAY.......ooiviiiiiit e e e e 361,117 6,348,947 6,710,064
Debt service. 3,379,227 3,379,227
TOTAL EXPENDITURES.......ccuvuiieiitinceerieevi v eee e 49,622,329 6,348,947 3,487,193 59,458,469
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES.......cceiutiuieinrentieesie e eeeeeneeesaeeeannas 2,523,422 (1,594,016) (321,408) 607,998

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in 259,560 259,560

Transfers out. (259,560) (259,560)
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES).............coovevennnn (259,560) - 259,560 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES..........ccucievveeeeiien s 2,263,862 (1,594,016) (61,848) 607,998
FUND BALANCES -JULY 1,2005......cooiii i 7,004,741 4,800,596 1,481,658 13,286,995
FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30,2006..........cccc0ovvevvnieeeninnennn $ 9,268,603 $ 3,206,580 $ 1,419,810 $ 13,894,993

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT E

(10f2)
TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
(EXHIBIT B) ARE DUE TO:
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (EXHIBIT D)...........eiieiesiennns 3 607,998
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities the cost
of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period:
CaPItAl OULIAY . ... e ettt e e e e et et e e e eeea e ea e et e e e e e e a et eraeeraraas 6,930,977
DEPreciation EXPENSE. .. v uu ereniieetirrtsetet e et etaietteseaettasetnnesnnsastsertesesanssaneranssansssnnssrnnennrennannns (1,179,494)
TOtAl et e ettt e et et e e eta e et et ae e e ntt—ae e et eeaa et nbaateaaa et taan st nen, 5,751,483
The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i. e., sales, trade-ins and donations)
is to increase net assets. In the Statement of Activities, only the loss on the sale of capital assets is reported.
However, in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale increase financial resources. Thus, the change
in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by the cost of the capital assets S0ld........ovevvnveeneeinneeeneeennns, (71,442)
Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported
as revenues in the funds and revenues recognized in the funds are not reported in the Statement of Activities:
School building Grant TECEIPLS. ......uieureerie ittt eet et e e e et eere e e e e e e e s e e an e e e e e e e eans (748,448)
Increase in property tax, sewer use and sewer assessment receivable - accrual basis change............cocvcuvervnnnnnn.. (251,636)
Increase in property tax, sewer use and sewer assessment interest and lien reVenue........veeueueeeenreeneeneennernnnns (21,379)
Increase in property tax and sewer use allowance for dOUbLTUL CCOUNES. .....vvvuvrenrininreentinerreneeneeeneeneanneens (31,317)
TOtAl e e ettt et e e ee e abt b naa e e tanataanann e e (1,052,780)
The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds,
while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect
of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities. The details of these differences in the treatment of
long-term debt and related items are as follows:
Principal repayments:
General ObLZAtioN DONAS. . ... ivuuiiieeiieieiii it et e ettt et e e e e e e aaan 1,813,805
CaPILAL IEASE.....eeuniiirieie e ettt et e rie e e e et e e e ettt e et e ee e e et e ee et e e et e te s et ee et tenrananstaennas 128,112
TOAL . veoveaeseesee e eeees e s st st es s es s s et se s e s e e s ee e e e ee e et eeeeerese e eeeeeeeren, 1,941,917
(Continued)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBITE

2 of 2)
JOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds:
Accrued INterest PAYADIE........iiin it ettt eea e e et e et a e e e e reaas $ 204,384
COMPENSATEd ADSEIICES. . .eueutrrrnitiere s e ee et e e rier et e rners et et ersenerannsaeensanstseneeennannsesnnsnnsnaeensnss 259,629
Early retirement MCEMTIVE. .....ouuieiii ittt et e et et e et et e e e ceen et e e e eta s te s e eaeesenaen e eseeae e aeneennes (30,058)
L0 e O (a1 TP OO 35,000
TOL ..t ettt e et r e e r e e ettt ean e ena— e eeran e st aenenaeee: 468,955
Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge costs of medical insurance premiums deductibles to
INiVIAUAL EPATTMENTS. . .covvuneiniiiree i eiie et et e et e e e et e e e e ee e e eeasannesensennssonsenns 1,130,874
The net revenue of the activities of the Internal Service Fund is reported with governmental activities...................... 5,971
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (EXHIBIT B) .....oceevreeierencerescneeneene 3 8,782,976
(Concluded)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

EXHIBIT F

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

VARIANCE
WITH
FINAL

BUDGET

REVENUES:
Taxes, interest and lien fees.........covvvevieviniie e e e,
Intergovernmental... ..o
Charges fOr SErVICes. ... cov it it veriit it e ceeceeceeceseeevenreevens
Use of TOWIINOMEY ...cevvvveeeveiit it iee vae eeeaee it cnnvee vaeee e

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General GOVEINMENL... ... .. coiire et irtvee e et eeeves e eeee
Public safety..........coovuniir i
Public WOTKS. .. .co i et et e e
Health... ..o e e e e
S0CIAl SEIVICES. ... viiieeiitveeeie e ces et e eee e e e
ReCreation. .. ... .ue v it it e e e e e e e
Miscellaneous...........eeve e ien et e e e
EdUCATION. .. ev it et cet e e e et e e e e e e e as

Capital otlay..........ooueniiiiiii i e e e e

Debt SEIVICE. .. coeee et it vt et e e e et et e e as

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Appropriation of fund balance.....................
Transfers out.......c.ooviiiiiiiiiin i e

NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES).......cccevverereneennnnn.

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE........cccoiiieveeieevirieecee e e

FUND BALANCE - JULY 1,2005... et et et et vt e

FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30,2006.........ccoueueereririe e cee s

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

30,199,440 §
15,119,715
2,534,500
865,000

30,199,440
15,119,715
2,534,500
865,000

30,289,355
15,719,091
3,124,015
1,513,290

89,915
599,376
589,515
648,290

48,718,655

48,718,655

50,645,751

1,927,096

5,998,650
2,914,715
3,316,492

147,058
30,170
246,099
72,767
31,794,709
570,000
3,597,995

6,091,725
3,010,710
3,446,592

150,708
52,170
248,599
72,767
31,794,709
581,750
3,379,995

5,890,184
2,870,387
3,383,014

150,111
50,822
239,375
71,222
31,789,167
373,815
3,379,227

201,541
140,323
63,578
597
1,348
9,224
1,545
5,542
207,935
768

48,688,655

48,829,725

48,197,324

632,401

30,000

(111,070)

2,448,427

2,559,497

(30,000

163,570
(52,500)

(259,560)

(163,570)
(207,060)

(30,000)

111,070

(259,560)

(370,630)
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2006

EXHIBIT G

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENTAL
ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
NONMAJOR
MAJOR FUND FUND MEDICAL
SEWER WATER INTERNAL
DEPARTMENT DEPARTMENT TOTALS SERVICE FUNDS
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash. $ 75,851 $ 344,703 $ 420,554 $
INVESEMENLS. .....c.oceeieeeieeer et e e e eee e vveves e e - 194,604
Receivables:
Useage........... 839,043 61,391 900,434
OHET ..ottt ettt st e et esen e en o 151,223 114,911 266,134 19,996
Due from other funds, 412 412 430,370
Total current assets....... 1,066,117 521,417 1,587,534 644,970
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Land.......coovvvieien i 1,058,031 40,300 1,098,331
Buildings and system.................. 14,689,957 91,987 14,781,944
Distribution and collection system................ 27,727,926 4,546,277 32,274,203
Machinery and equipment.................. .o 8,087,708 452,953 8,540,661
Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)............... 51,563,622 5,131,517 56,695,139 -
TOTAL ASSETS......cotiietrrnecee et estes e enae e oo . 52,629,739 5,652,934 58,282,673 644,970
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable... 324,757 796 325,553
Accrued payroll.. R 135,306 135,306
Claims payable... ... ......oocvo et e et e e e e - 489,237
Accrued interest payable............o.coeviieeirieerieeere e 60,411 60,411
Due to other funds..........c.coooveviriirenennes 117,191 117,191
Compensated abSCENCES.........ccvrerreiriereiiieeeereereessesssesnseres 47,930 47,930
Bonds, notes and loans payable.....................ccooee i 380,000 380,000
Total current liabilities............cccoveierivcioeceiecreeiisrs e vee e 1,065,595 796 1,066,391 489,237
Noncurrent liabilities:
Advances from other funds.............c.ooooeoveiceeererieeeieieseeseesrans 1,200,000 1,200,000 -
Bonds, notes and loans payable...................cccooieeiiiiinannn 3,275,000 3,275,000
Total noncurrent Habilities. .............oovovvveveivc e recceeeeeee eee e R 4,475,000 - 4,475,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES ... ... ... .oo oo ot e e e 5,540,595 796 5,541,391 489,237
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt..................... ... ... 47,908,622 5,131,517 53,040,139
Unrestricted. .. ... .oooiu it e e et e e et e e (819,478) 520,621 (298,857) 155,733
TOTALNET ASSETS....ooiii et et e et e e $ 47,089,144 $ 5,652,138 $ 52,741,282 $ 155,733

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

29




EXHIBIT H
. TOWN OF MONTVILLE. CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENTAL
ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
NONMAJOR
MAJOR FUND FUND MEDICAL
SEWER WATER INTERNAL
DEPARTMENT DEPARTMENT TOTALS SERVICE FUND
OPERATING REVENUES:
$ 3,963,923 3 218,981 $ 4,182,904 $ 6,834,674
281,953 281,953
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES.........ccoovviiiiiiiiiiiiee, 4,245,876 218,981 4,464,857 6,834,674
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel Services..........co.oveiiiiiie i e, 619,297 619,297
Supplies............... 328,451 328,451
Maintenance 306,958 306,958
Energy and transportation... 798,178 9912 808,090
INSUrance and taXES. .......o.vuieeiie it ettt aanas 317,724 317,724
Contracted SEIVICES..........oevirti ettt ve e e e eennns 1,139,314 1,139,314
Claims incurred - 5,053,685
Administration..... 115,482 115,482 650,115
Depreciation...........oocociiiiiiiiini i 1,296,358 94,061 1,390,419
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES. .. .......cooivvieiiiiiieceeennee, 4,806,280 219,455 5,025,735 5,703,800
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS).....coeeiiieiiiie i (560,404) 474) (560,873) 1,130,874
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment iNCOME. .........ceuuviienimeiiieiiiee e aee e 1,470 11,695 13,165 5,971
Capital contributions.. . 480,084 480,084
Interest expense................ . (219,888) (219,888)
NET NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES).................. (218,418) 491,779 273,361 5,971
CHANGEINNET ASSETS.......uuooiiiiiiiiieiie e (778,822) 491,305 (287,517) 1,136,845
TOTAL NET ASSETS - JULY 1, 2005 (AS RESTATED)........... 47,867,966 5,160,833 53,028,799 (981,112)
TOTAL NET ASSETS - JUNE 30, 2006.............c.cccvnvevennnnnn.. $ 47,089,144 $ 5,652,138 $ 52,741,282 $ 155,733

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

EXHIBIT ¥

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENTAL
ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
NONMAJOR
MAJOR FUND FUND MEDICAL
SEWER WATER INTERNAL
DEPARTMENT DEPARTMENT TOTALS SERVICE FUND
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from CUSIOMETS. .. ..vvvueiieeee it e e e e een e e eea s $ 4,098,498 $ 104,547 $ 4,203,045 $ 5,690,663

Payments to suppliers..... (2,750,703) (124,598) (2,875,301)

Payments to employees........... (619,297) (619,297)

Cash paid for benefits and claims - (4,985,383)

Cash paid for adminiStration................ooeerutieeiiii e e eee e eee it e - (650,115)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES.................. 728,498 (20,051) 708,447 55,165
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Additions to capital aSSetS..........cc.utiitierire e e e (98,890) (480,084) (578,974)

Capital contribution received 480,084 480,084

Principal payments............ . (385,000) (385,000)

TIHErest PAYINENLS. .. ...cee ittt ere i ire eeeinere v et eee it e re aes e ennees eeeneenes (219,888) (219,888)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) CAPITAL AND

RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES. .. ....cooti it iae et v ereeee e ean e (703,778) - (703,778) -
CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

INVEStMENT MMCOMIE. .. ..e v iiieiieer s cer et e eee ettt eee eee et eee e ee e een veeeee i ans 1,470 11,695 13,165 5,971
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH........coiitiiiiiiiiie e iee e e eee s eee e 26,190 (8,356) 17,834 61,136
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JULY 1,2005.......cooovvitiiiiiiicnies ceeieenns 49,661 353,059 402,720 133,468
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JUNE 30, 2006..........cocevviueernaerenennan 3 75,851 $ 344,703 3 420,554 $ 194,604
RECONCILIATION TO EXHIBIT G - CASH:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS PER ABOVE.......ccccoeveiiiiiiiii e, $ 75,851 $ 344,703 $ 420,554 3 194,604

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REPORTED AS INVESTMENTS............. - (194,604)
CASH = EXHIBIT G...covvvrrenreanniveans eestenneesiinaestasans senare sanaessnnaesannesesnsnnn 3 75,851 $ 344,703 $ 420,554 3 -

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating inCome (I0SS)... .. ovveieeeiurererninieareereeeeseeereete s aeeees nerennss 3 (560,404) $ (474) $  (560,878) $ 1,130,874
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
DEPreciation. .. ... .ev v veeveriee it i eee e e ter e eestee s verart e e e ne s ans 1,296,358 94,061 1,390,419
(Increase) Decrease in:
Receivables.........ooii i e e e (147,378) (114,434) (261,812) (19,996)
Due from other fands............occoceiiieniiiiiiiiii i e - (430,370)
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts and other payables..........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 271,016 796 271,812 67,467
Due t0 Other fINAS...........oovvoeeeeer e ceeeee e oo e eeeere s eeeeae e (131,094) (131,094) (692,810)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES.................. 3 728,498 $ (20,051) $ 708,447 $ 55,165

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT J

TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2006
AGENCY
FUNDS
ASSET
Sttt e e et ae bbb st b et et e ee et e ne et s e ettt seeseeneseene e e e n e e e e e e e e enens $ 616,857
LIABILITY
ACCOUNLS PAYADIE.......cueuieiiiereeeteicnir et es et reessesss s esasste e e e e e e s s aeesa et s ea s eneeeseaeenenaeeaen $ 616,857

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT K

TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION

The Town of Montville, Connecticut (the "Town"), was incorporated in 1786. The Town covers 43.9
square miles located in the southeastern part of Connecticut.

The Town operates under a Town Council/Mayor form of government and provides a full range of
services including public safety, roads, sanitation, health, social services, culture and recreation,
education, planning, zoning, and general administrative services to its residents. The accompanying
financial statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies
used by the Town.

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes
in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Town. For the most part, the
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-.
type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements.

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
Jocus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Agency funds do not have a measurement focus but are accounted for on the accrual basis
of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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EXHIBIT K
TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

I  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
Jocus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the
current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the
portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be
susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the Town.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. Tt accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Bonded Projects Fund accounts for the financial revenues to be used for major capital asset
construction and/or purchases.

The Town reports the following major proprietary fund:
The Sewer Fund accounts for the activities of the Town’s Sewer Department.
Additionally, the Town reports the following fund types:

The Internal Service Funds account for risk financing activities for medical insurance benefits as
allowed by GASB Statement No. 10.

The Agency Funds account for monies held on behalf of students and performance bonds.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and enterprise fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. The Town also has the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for
their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The Town has
elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between
the Town’s sewer and water departments and various other functions of the Town. Elimination of
these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions
concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.
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EXHIBIT K

TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

L

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the sewer enterprise fund, of the water enterprise fund, and of the government’s internal service funds
are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal
service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

Deposits - The Town’s cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, money
market accounts and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the
date of acquisition.

Investments - In general, State of Connecticut Statutes allow the Town to invest in obligations of
the United States of America or United States government sponsored corporations, in shares or
other interests in any custodial arrangement, pool, or no-load, open-end management type
investment company or investment trust (as defined), in obligations of any State or political
subdivision rated within the top two rating categories of any nationally recognized rating service,
or in obligations of the State of Connecticut or political subdivision rated within the top three
rating categories of any nationally recognized rating service.

State Treasurers Investment Fund is an investment pool managed by the State of Connecticut
Office of the State Treasurer. Investments must be made in instruments authorized by
Connecticut General Statutes 3-27c¢ - 3-27e. Investment guidelines are adopted by the State
Treasurer. The fair value of the position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.
The balance of the pooled fixed income investments were invested in a 2a-7 like pool which
operates under State Statutes. The fair value of the position in the pool is the same as the value
of the pool shares.

Investments for the Town are reported at fair value.

2. Receivables and Payables

a. Interfunds

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding
at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current
portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of
interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal
balances.”
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EXHIBIT K

TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

L  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

2. Receivables and Payables (Continued)

3.

b. Property Taxes and Other Receivables

In the government-wide financial statements, all trade, property tax, sewer use and sewer
assessment receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Allowance
percentages range from 2% to 30% of outstanding balances at June 30, 2006, and are calculated
based upon prior collection history.

In the fund financial statements, all property taxes receivable at June 30, 2006, which have
not been collected within 60 days of June 30, have been recorded as deferred revenue, since
they are not considered to be available to finance expenditures of the current fiscal year.
Taxes collected during the 60 day period have been recorded as revenue.

Property taxes are assessed on property as of October 1 and are billed the following July 1.
Real estate and personal property taxes are payable in two installments, July 1 and January 1.
Motor vehicle taxes are payable on July 1, and supplemental motor vehicle taxes are payable
on January 1. Certificates of continuing lien are filed against delinquent real estate taxes
within the first year after the first installment of the tax.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the
Town as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 for equipment, $20,000 for
improvements and $100,000 for infrastructure, and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets’ lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are
capitalized as projects are constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the Town are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings, structures and improvements 33-100
Transportation and communication equipment 8-20
Other equipment 10-75
Infrastructure:
Roads 75
Sewer plant 50
Sewer lines 100
Water lines 100
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EXHIBIT K

TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

L

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

4. Compensated Absences

Town employees accumulate vacation and sick leave hours for subsequent use or for payment
upon termination or retirement,

Sick leave and vacation leave expenditures are recognized in the governmental funds in the
current year to the extent they are paid during the year or the vested amount is expected to be
paid with available resources. The vesting method, using historical data, was used to calculate
the liability. Vested sick leave and accumulated vacation leave of proprietary funds are recorded
as an expense and liability of those funds and the benefits accrue to employees.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net
assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the
life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and
amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts
that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a
specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are
subject to change.

In the government-wide financial statements, net assets are classified into the following categories:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

This category presents the net assets that reflect capital assets net of only the debt applicable to
the acquisition or construction of these assets. Debt issued for non-capital purpose is excluded.
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EXHIBIT K

TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

I  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

6.

Fund Equity (Continued)

Restricted Net Assets

This category presents the net assets restricted by exteral parties (creditors, grantors,
contributors or laws and regulations).

Unrestricted Net Assets

This category presents the net assets of the Town which are not restricted.

7. Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities including disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities and reported revenues, expenses and expenditures during the fiscal year.

Comparative Data/Reclassifications

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented only for the internal service fund and
the individual enterprise funds in the fund financial statements in order to provide an understanding
of the changes in the financial position and operations of these funds. Also, certain amounts
presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current
year’s presentation.

II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The Town establishes its general fund budget in accordance with provisions of its Town Charter and
Connecticut General Statutes.

The head of each department, office and agency submits to the By 100 days before the
Finance Director detailed estimates of expenditures and any close of the fiscal year
revenues other than tax revenues expected to be collected.

The Mayor submits a Capital Improvement Program for the By 75 days before the
ensuing fiscal year and the immediate four subsequent years to close of the fiscal year
the Town Council for changes from the prior year's program. It

is then submitted to the Planning and Zoning Commission for

approval. The Council then adopts the Program. The Program

details the project, cost estimates, methods of financing, time

schedules, and the estimated annual cost of facility operation.
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EXHIBIT K

TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)

A. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (Continued)

The Mayor presents a budget message, estimates of revenues By 75 days before the
and expenditures, and justifications to the Town Council. close of the fiscal year
The Town Council publishes the particulars of the budget and By 60 days before the
holds one or more public hearings. close of the fiscal year

The Town Council may add, increase, delete or decrease any
programs or amounts except for those prohibited by law. The
budget is returned to the Mayor, who approves it or vetoes
one or more line items (except for the Board of Education
budget). A veto may be overridden by a two-thirds vote of
the entire Council.

The Town Council adopts the final budget. By 30 days before the
close of the fiscal year

If the Town Council fails to adopt a budget within the prescribed time frame, the previous year's
budget prevails on a month-to-month basis until the new budget is adopted.

With written approval of a department head and the Director of Finance, transfers between line
items within a department can be made. The Town Council may transfer unexpended balances
between departments.

The Board of Education may transfer unexpended balances between accounts within its total line
appropriation.

Additional appropriations may be made during the year by resolution of the Town Council.
Additional appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2006, amounted to $163,570 from fund
balance.

Encumbrances are recognized as a valid and proper charge against a budget appropriation in the
year in which the purchase order, contract or other commitment is issued and, accordingly,
encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported in budgetary reports (Exhibit F) as expenditures
in the current year. Generally, all unencumbered appropriations lapse at year end, except those for
the Capital Projects Funds. Appropriations for capital projects are continued until completion of
applicable projects, even when projects extend more than one fiscal year.
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

EXHIBIT K

II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)

B. Budget - GAAP Reconciliation

A reconciliation of revenues, expenditures, and fund balance between the accounting treatment required
by GAAP (Exhibit D), and budgetary requirements (Exhibit F), is as follows:

FUND
REVENUES EXPENDITURES BALANCE
BALANCE, BUDGETARY BASIS, EXHIBITF -
JUNE 30, 2006 ....ccrermrrereenerensermerensessssssessssssssssssssssssessiones $ 50,645,751 $ 48,197,324 $ 7,494,413
Encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2005
liquidated during the year ended June 30, 2006 ...................... 1,699,195
Encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2006
charged to budgetary expenditures (1,774,190) 1,774,190
State Teachers’ Retirement on-behalf payment ...........ccvveenneeee. 1.500.000 1,500,000
BALANCE, GAAP BASIS, EXHIBIT D - JUNE 30, 2006.... $ 52,145751 $ 49622329 $§ 9,268,603
C. Capital Projects Authorizations
The following is a summary of Capital Projects at June 30, 2006:
CURRENT
YEAR CUMULATIVE BALANCE
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND AUTHORIZATION EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES JUNE 30, 2006
School construction..........eccceeeruenne. $ 55,350,000 $ 6,301,663 $ 12,645,491 $ 42,704,509
High school fire fund* 3,895,324 47,284 3,895,324 -
Palmertown Water ..........ceceeueceeeecncens 2.058.000 378,080 480,304 1,577.693
TOTAL .....coivvcencrneencrrene 361303324 $ 6,727,027 $ 17,021,122 $ 44282202

*Of the total project authorization to date, $3,740,373 has been funded by insurance proceeds.
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EXHIBIT K

TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

III. DETAILED NOTES

A. Cash and Investments

1.

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the Town’s deposits may not be returned to it. The Town does not have a deposit policy
for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2006, $3,305,957 of the Town’s bank balance of
$4,062,429 was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and uncollateralized .........cccococovvveimvrvrvereeeenens $ 2,955,361
Uninsured and collateral held by the pledging

bank’s trust department not in the Town’s name.............. 350,596
Total amount subject to custodial credit risk............coun..... $ 3,305,957

Investments - At June 30, 2006, the Town’s investments consisted of the following:

INVESTMENT MATURITIES (IN YEARS)

FAIR LESS
TYPE OF INVESTMENT VALUE THAN 1
Pooled fixed income $ 12,265,040 $ 12,265,040

Interest rate risk - The Town does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest
rates.

Credit risk - The Town has no investment policy that would limit its investment choices due to
credit risk other than State Statutes governing investments in obligations of any State or political
subdivision or in obligations of the State of Connecticut or political subdivision.

The Town’s investments in pooled fixed income investments had average ratings as follows by
Standard & Poor’s.

POOLED
AVERAGE FIXED
RATING INCOME
AAA ..., $12,265,040

Custodial credit risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the Town will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. The Town’s investment in government bonds and
corporate bonds are held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the Town’s name
and is not insured for amounts greater than $1,000,000.
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EXHIBIT K

TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

III. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

B.

Receivables

Receivables as of year end for the Town’s government-wide financial statements by type, including the
applicable allowances for uncollectibles, are as follows:

PROPERTY TAXES
INTEREST
TAXES & LIEN FEES TOTAL
Current Portion.......cccovevvrvevevenrnans $ 401,087 $ 142496 $ 543583
Long-term Portion..........ccevvureenee. $ 984,263 $ 667,909 $ 1,652,172
Less Allowance for Uncollectibles (166.242) (240.420) (406.662)
Net Long-term Portion........c.ccu...... $ 818.021 $ 427489 $ 1245510
SEWER ASSESSMENTS
INTEREST
ASSESSMENTS & LIEN FEES TOTAL
Current Portion......ccccecvveecevernnnnnee. $ 234612 $ 20,291 $ 254903
Long-term Portion.........ccocoeverencnen. $ 1,261,641 $ 109,117 $ 1,370,758
Less Allowance for Uncollectibles (29.925) (2,588) (32,513)
Net Long-Term Portion ................. $§ 1231716 $ 106,529 $ 1338245
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE
SEWER WATER TOTAL
Use Charges Receivable................. $ 859,043 $ 64,391 $ 923,434
Less Allowance for Uncollectibles (20.000) (3.000) (23.000)
Net Receivables ......connvnvieennnnnns $ 839,043 h 61,391 $ 900434
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

EXHIBIT K

IIl. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

B.

Receivables (Continued)

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue
recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current
fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue reported in the governmental

funds were as follows:

DEFERRED REVENUE:

Delinquent property taxes receivable (general fund)

$ 1,273,304

Special assessments not yet due (general fund) ........ccccvvveerecennreeerseensnnenss 1,496,253
UNEARNED REVENUE:
Grant drawdowns prior to meeting all eligibility requirements...................... 53,343
TOTAL UNEARNED REVENUE FOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS............ $ 2.822.900
Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2006 was as follows:
BALANCE
JULY 1,2005 BALANCE
(RESTATED) INCREASES DECREASES JUNE 30, 2006
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, not being Depreciated:
Land $ 960,468 $ 110,100 § 48,050 $ 1,022,518
Construction in Progress......eoevreuerrervresrssresens 6,344,087 6,301,665 12,645,752
Total Capital Assets, not being depreciated..... 7,304,555 6,411,765 48,050 13,668,270
Capital Assets, being Depreciated:
Land improvements 931,355 20,700 952,055
Buildings and systems 30,124,263 7,725 30,131,988
Machinery and equipment..........c.c.eeeeeeeererrennces 9,048,042 490,787 237,919 9,300,910
Infrastructure 15,593,015 15,593,015
Total Capital Assets being depreciated.........coounene.. 55,696,675 519,212 237,919 55,977,968
Total Capital Assets.......... 63,001,320 6,930,977 285,969 69,646,238
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Land improvements 521,650 33,265 554,915
Buildings and systems 7,456,744 394,431 7,851,175
Machinery and equipment ..........ceceeeveecuerrerennns 4,406,714 544,742 214,027 4,737,429
Infrastructure 5,337,148 207,056 5,544,204
Total Accumulated Depreciation .........ecoueeeeseereerns 17,722.256 1,179.494 214,027 18,687,723
Total Capital Assets, being depreciated, net ... 37.974.419 (660,282) 23.892 37,290,245
Govermnmental Activities Capital Assets, net ........... $ 45278974 §$ 5751483 $ 71942 § 50,958,515
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EXHIBIT K
TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

HI. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

C. Capital Assets (Continued)
BALANCE
JULY 1, 2005 BALANCE
(RESTATED) _ INCREASES JUNE 30, 2006

Business-Type Activities:

Capital Assets, not being Depreciated/ Amortized:

Land...ccoieeeitreeeeerrer et enennne e tnes $ 1,098,331 $ $ 1.098.331
Capital Assets, being Depreciated/Amortized:
Buildings ....c.ccceeerveveerenrrnreecstsnie e eenens 18,182,541 18,182,541
Distribution and collection system.........c.ccccevvererrvenene. 43,104,623 465,684 43,570,307
Machinery and equipment ..........ceceeeveereveeeccecensrerennsnnnn 12,296,210 113.290 12,409,500
Total Capital Assets, being Depreciated/Amortized.... 73.583.374 578.974 74,162,348
Total Capital ASSELS .....ccoerrereereriereireeeierereeerrereeasanans 74,681,705 578974 75,260,679
Less Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization for:
Buildings ......cccovveveevrienerineenineenenceneese et snenens 3,040,711 359,886 3,400,597
Distribution and collection systen ........ceeererrrverennnnn. 10,719,067 577,037 11,296,104
Machinery and equipment ..........ccccceceerecereserererereinserenns 3.415,343 453.496 3.868.839
Total Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization........... 17.175,121 1.390.419 18,565,540
Total Capital Assets,

being Depreciated/Amortized, net........ccecveeveeerennee... 56,408,253 (811.445) 55,596,808
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, net............... $57.506,584 $ (811.445) $56,695,139

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Town as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General admInISation .........oveiveeieeeeeemiiesisieeserteeeeeeereeeeseeesseeeseesssesesssessasseesens $ 60,511
PUDLC SATELY .....eoveeeeeeeririireetreeeeets st se s beset e s esoser e sennnn 230,133
PUDLC WOTKS ...ttt sae st e eesee st st s e eee s e e e e sene s 340,742
Health and Welfare.........ccoeeeeeeceeeee ettt eeeeseeneea 25,189
RECTEALION ...ttt s e seeeeetas e s e e s stenssaennes 78,699
EQUCALION ..ottt rrreieee s isae e seaeseae e se s ssn e sstssesomeseseee s nana 444220
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental ACHVItES.....oouerreeverrereeecrenrenserenn. $ 1,179,494
Business-Type Activities:
SEWET ....cucreerererrenenssessesensstsersssessststesssessssssesesessssssssessssssnsassssssesssssessasmmnsnnesosssnen $ 1,296,358
IV BEET ...ttt st ne s eer e e sseassaess s be s s b s bt s ne s e e seteeas 94.061
Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type ACHVItIES........ccoeevueueueecurieeemresnerinene $ 1390419
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EXHIBIT K
TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IIl. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

D. Interfund Accounts

1. Interfund Payables and Receivables

During the course of operations, transactions are processed through a fund on behalf of another fund.
Additionally, revenues received in one fund are transferred to another fund. A summary of interfund
balances at June 30, 2006, is presented below:

CORRESPONDING
FUND DUE FROM DUE TO
DUE FROM/TO OTHER FUNDS:
MAJOR FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND:
Bonded projects ......cceecereeeeceenrerereenenens N/A $ $ 2,082,468
Town aid road fund...........covvremreveeneennnnn. N/A 55,070
Special education grant fund.................. N/A 3,012
Social services fund ..........coevevverruvernnnnes N/A 53,878
Youth services bureau fund ................... NA 9,989
Learn not to burn fund ......ccceceererevenenn.e. N/A 459
Open space recreation fund.........ccc........ N/A 5,000
Town historic preservation.........c.cceeeunn. N/A 6,859
Police donations fund............ccevevueeneeen. N/A 3,615
Capital nonrecurring fund.........c.cccnue... N/A 1,828
Carryforward fund.........covvvcvccercninnnane. N/A 741,793
Palmertown water fund.........ccccereveneenee. N/A 9,590
Sewer fund.....cooceeorrciecieceecee N/A 116,779
Internal service fund.......c.occeeeecevienreeneene N/A 430,370
TOTAL GENERAL FUND......cccccereeervrennne 126,369 3,394,341
MAJOR — BONDED PROJECTS:
Bonded projects ......cveevvereercererenrennnenens General Fund 2,082,468
MAJOR - SEWER:
Sewer fund....c.coceevreieneceevneserneene. General Fund 116,779
Sewer fund .....covevvvecervensrensescennerereeseene Water Fund 412
TOTAL MAJOR — SEWER .......cevvvrecvenennene - 117,191
NONMAIJOR — WATER.....ccoeverecerrerrennnne Sewer Fund 412
NONMAJOR:
Town aid road fund.........ccceerverrverueennenen General Fund 55,070
Special education grant fund.................. General Fund 3,012
Social services fund ........coovvevveremreennnee. General Fund 53,878
Youth services bureau fund ................... General Fund 9,989
Learn not to burn fund .......couevenvreenennen. General Fund 459
Open space recreation fund.................... General Fund 5,000
Town historic preservation........cccoveeevene General Fund 6,859
Police donations fund...........cceeevueevrnnenne General Fund 3,615
Capital nonrecurring fund........cccoceevnceen. General Fund 1,828
Carryforward fund........cccoeveevevireernnenens General Fund 741,793
Palmertown water fund..........cceveunnenen. General Fund 9,590
TOTAL NONMAIJOR......cceverrecrreerererreneene 881,503 9.590
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND.......cccceecvruenenee General Fund 430,370
GRAND TOTAL....coorreeeeeeceeectereeeineeeenns $ 3,521,122 $ 3,521,122

All interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates payments occurred between funds for

short-term internal financing.
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EXHIBIT K

IIl. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

Interfund Accounts (Continued)

1. Interfund Payables and Receivables (Continued)

CORRESPONDING
FUND DUE FROM DUE TO
ADVANCES FROM/TO OTHER FUNDS:
MAIJOR FUNDS
GENERAL FUND:
Sewer fund.........cocooeveeveceeereeeeeeeeenenne N/A $ 1.200,000 b
MAIJOR - SEWER:

Sewer department .........cccceeeevecereeenereeernnnns General Fund 1,200,000
GRAND TOTAL.....ovteeereeereeirrereceeneens $ 1,2000,000 8§ 1,200.000
2. Interfund Transfers

A summary of interfund transfers as of June 30, 2006 is as follows:

CORRESPONDING TRANSFERS TRANSFERS
FUND IN ouT
MAIJOR FUNDS
GENERAL FUND:
Capital nonrecurring fund .......ccovevevveueereennnnnn. N/A b $ 52,500
Carry forward fund........cccoeoriviceirirnencirecinnen N/A 207,060
TOTAL GENERAL FUND.....c.cccccovrenrrnnrarrennnan - 259.560
NONMAJOR FUNDS:

Capital NONTECUITING......c..vevremrerreeeiniercarcraeeans General Fund 52,500

Carry forward fund......cooceeverevinncnnrccrcrane General Fund 207,060
TOTAL NONMAIJOR FUNDS......cccovmumrernrererrnenes 259.560 -
GRAND TOTAL....cooeeereieeereirietcrcrerne e reesae s 3 259,560 $ 259,560

Transfers are used to account for the financing by the general fund of various program and activities

in other funds.
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IIl. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

E  Changes in Long-Term Obligations
1. Summary of Changes

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations during the fiscal year:

ORIGINAL DATE OF FINAL INTEREST BALANCE BALANCE CURRENT
DESCRIPTION PRINCIPAL  ISSUE MATURITY RATES JULY 1,2005 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS  JUNE 30,2006 PORTION
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
BONDS/NOTES
General Purpose:
Improvementbond $ 7,310,000 03/15/88 03/15/05 64%-7.0% $ 2,190,000 $ $ 220,000 $ 1970000 §$ 220,000
Improvement bond 8,050,000 03/01/92 03/01/12 5.0%-6.3% 2,745,000 395,000 2,350,000 395,000
Improvement bond 2,845,000 03/01/94 12/01/13  3.5%-5.5% 1,005,000 140,000 865,000 140,000
Improvement bond 3,400,000 11/15/01 07/1521 3.0%-5% 2.890,000 170000 2,720,000 170,000
Total General Purpose 8,830,000 - 925,000 7,905.000 925,000
Schools:
School bonds 11,500,000 04/15/91 06/15/11  57%-6.7% 3,450,000 575,000 2,875,000 575,000
School bonds 707,000 11/15/01 07/1521  3.0%-5.0% 599,250 35,250 564,000 35250
School bonds 390,000 11/15/01 07/1521  3.0%-5.0% 330,750 19,750 311,000 19,750
School bonds 10,000,000  09/15/04 09/1525 2.5%-4.5% 10,000.000 10,000,000 410000
Total School Bonds 14,380,000 - 630,000 13,750,000 1,040,000
Sewer:
Sewer bond 4,630,000 03/01/94 120113 3.5%-5.5% 1,890.000 230,000 1.660.000 225000
Water:
Water bond 497,000  01/28/86 01/28/06 6.625% 24,850 24350 -
Water bond 79,100  09/16/86 09/16/06 6.125% 7,910 3,955 3,955 3,955
Water bond 70,000 09/15/04 09/1525 2.5%-4.5% 70,000 70,000 30,000
Total Water Bonds 102,760 - 28.805 73.955 33,955
TOTAL BONDS/NOTES 25,202,760 1,813,805 23,388,955 2,223,955
CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS 837416 128,112 709304 132,494
COMPENSATED ABSENCES 3,737,715 126,885 386,514 3,478,086 695,617
TEACHER EARLY RETIREMENT 244,441 173,755 143,697 274,499 110,114
LANDFILL CLOSURE 665.000 35,000 630,000 35.000
TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS $ 30687332 3 300640 $ 2507128 $ 28480844 § 3,197,180

All long-term liabilities are generally liquidated by the General Fund.

ORIGINALL DATE OF FINAL  INTEREST BALANCE BALANCE CURRENT
DESCRIPTION PRINCIPAI,  ISSUE MATURITY RATES  JULY 1,2005 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS  JUNE 30,2006 PORTION
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
ENTERPRISE FUNDS:
Sewer Bond $ 730,000 03/01/92 03/01/12 53%-63% $ 315,000 $ $ 45,000 $ 270000 $ 45000
Sewer Bond 2,130,000 12/01/94 12/01/11  5.3%-7.5% 810,000 120,000 690,000 115,000
Sewer Bond 390,000 12/01/94 1201113 3.5%-5.5% 115,000 20,000 95,000 20,000
Sewer Bond 1,350,000  02/15/99 02/15/19  6.6%-6.6% 960,000 65,000 895,000 65,000
Sewer Bond 2,650,000  02/15/99 02/15/19  4.0%-6.0% 1.840.000 135.000 1,705,000 135,000
TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS OBLIGATIONS $_.4.040.000 $ - % 385000 $§ 3655000 _$ 380.000
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1II. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

FISCAL

YEAR ENDED

JUNE 30

E.

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

TOTALS

Changes in Long-Term Obligations (Continued)
1. Summary of Changes (Continued)

The following is a summary of amounts to be provided by the State of Connecticut for the
retirement of school bonds and bond and note maturities:

AMOUNTTO AMOUNTTO

BEPROVIDED BE PROVIDED BONDS TEACHERS’
BY STATE BY STATE EARLY LANDFILL ENTERPRISE FUNDS BONDS
PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST  RETIREMENT CLOSURE PRINCIPAL INTEREST
$ 532274 § 182206 § 2223955 $ 1,113972 § 110,114  §$ 35000 $ 380,000 § 201,751
532274 147,707 2,230,000 998,276 119467 35,000 375,000 180,014
528,882 113,208 2,230,000 882336 27,722 35,000 375,000 158,330
528,882 78,392 2,225,000 765327 10,318 35,000 375,000 136,533
528,882 43,575 2,225,000 647,136 6,878 35,000 375,000 114345
139,081 8,757 1,745,000 525968 35,000 375,000 92,028
1,195,000 445221 35,000 200,000 74,265
1,190,000 389,067 35,000 200,000 63,925
995,000 333,957 35,000 200,000 53455
785,000 285,613 35,000 200,000 42355
785,000 253,088 35,000 200,000 32,190
785,000 220,450 35,000 200,000 21,525
785,000 187,250 35,000 200,000 10,795
785,000 153,600 35,000
785,000 119951 35,000
770,000 86,625 35,000
550,000 58,781 35,000
550,000 35,750 35,000
550,000 12,031
$ 2790275 $ 573845 $ 23388955 § 7514399 § 274499 § 630000 §_3.655000 §$ 1,182011

2. Statutory Debt Limitation

The Town’s indebtedness does not exceed the legal debt limitations as required by Connecticut
General Statutes as reflected in the following schedule:

Category

General Purpose

Schools
Sewers

Urban renewal
Pension deficit

Debt Limit

$ 67,965,764
135,931,527
113,276,273

98,172,770
90,621,018

Net Indebtedness

$ 7,905,000
10,959,725

Balance

$ 60,060,764
124,971,802
113,276,273

98,172,770
90,621,018

The total overall statutory debt limit for the Town is equal to seven times annual receipts from

taxation, $211,449,042.

‘The indebtedness reflected above includes bonds outstanding in addition to the amount of bonds
authorized and unissued against which bond anticipation notes are issued and outstanding. School
building grant receivables of $2,790,275 for bond principal are reflected as deductions in the
computation of net indebtedness.
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IIl. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

E. Changes in Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

3. Capital Leases

Capital L.ease Commitments - The Town is obligated under certain leases accounted for as capital
leases. Assets under capital leases totaled $1,837,306 at June 30, 2006. The following is a
schedule of future minimum lease payments under capital leases, together with net present value
of the minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2006.

YEAR ENDING GENERAL LONG-
JUNE 30 TERM DEBT
2007 $ 156,754
2008 156,754
2009 156,754
2010 156,754
2011 156,754
Minimum lease payments for all capital leases 783,770
Less: amount representing interest 74.466
Present value of minimum lease payments 709,304

4. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs

State and federal laws and regulations require that the Town place a final cover on its landfill and
perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty years after
closure. In addition to operating expenses related to current activities of the landfill, an expense
provision and related liability are being recognized based on the future closure and postclosure
care costs that will be incurred near or after the date the landfill no longer accepts waste. The
recognition of these landfill closure and postclosure care costs is based on the amount of the
landfill used during the year. The estimated liability for landfill postclosure care costs has a
balance of $630,000 as of June 30, 2006, which is based on 100% usage of the landfill. The
estimated total current cost of the landfill closure and postclosure care is based on the amount
that would be paid if all equipment, facilities and services required to close, monitor and maintain
the landfill were acquired as of June 30, 2006. However, postclosure care may be higher due to
inflation, changes in technology or changes in landfill laws and regulations.

The Town of Montville will finance the costs of postclosure care through charges to taxpayers. It
is anticipated that future inflation costs and additional costs that might arise from changes in
postclosure requirements (due to changes in technology or more rigorous environmental
regulations, for example) will be financed through future borrowings or tax collections.

5. ZTermination Benefits

The Board of Education provides early retirement incentive benefits to 22 former employees.
Benefits are paid annually based on the retirement agreement for each employee. Benefits are
payable through 2011. The amount paid during the year ended June 30, 2006, was $143,697 from
general fund appropriations.

6. Authorized/Unissued Bonds

The amount of authorized, unissued bonds for school purposes is $20,900,000
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1V. OTHER INFORMATION

A.

Risk Management

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to public official liability, police professional
liability, theft or impairment of assets, errors and omissions, injury to employees, natural disasters,
and owners' and contractors' protective liability.

The Town established as an internal service fund, the health insurance fund, to account for and
finance the retained risk of loss for Town employee medical benefits coverage. A third party
administers the plan for which the fund pays a fee. The health insurance fund provides coverage for
all eligible full time employees.

The Town has purchased a stop loss policy for total claims in any one year exceeding an aggregate of
125% of expected claims and for individual claims exceeding $125,000 for combined hospital and
major medical.

Health insurance premiums are based upon estimates by number of employees and type of coverage
(single or family), trends in the insurance claims and estimates for administration. The claims
liability reported is based upon the requirements of GASB Statements No. 10 and 30, which require
that a liability for estimated claims incurred but not reported be recorded.

The health insurance fund liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the
amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that has
been incurred but not reported. Because actual claims liabilities depend on such complex factors as
inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards, the process used to compute claims
liabilities does not necessarily result in an exact amount. Claims liabilities are reevaluated
periodically to take into consideration recently settled claims, the frequency of claims, including the
effects of specific, incremental claim adjustment expenditures, salvage and subrogation; allocated
claim adjustment expenditures are not included.

CURRENT YEAR
CLAIMS CLAIMS AND CLAIMS
PAYABLE CHANGES IN CLAIMS PAYABLE
JULY 1 ESTIMATES PAID JUNE 30
2004-2005 $ 485,320 $4,935,877 $ 5,000,262 $ 420,935
2005-2006 420,935 5,053,685 4,985,383 489,237

The Town currently is a member in Connecticut Interlocal Risk Management Agency (CIRMA), a
public entity risk pool established for the purpose of administering an interlocal risk management
program pursuant to the provisions of Section 7-479a et. seq. of Connecticut General Statutes, for
workers' compensation and employer liability coverage. CIRMA currently has 233 members in the
workers' compensation pool. The Town pays an annual premium for its coverage. CIRMA is to be
self-sustaining through members' premiums but reinsures in excess of $1,000,000 for each insured
occurrence. Members may be subject to supplemental assessment in the event of deficiencies;
however, potential assessments are limited pursuant to the by-laws.

The Town purchases commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including blanket and umbrella
policies. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three years and
there have not been any significant reductions in insurance coverage from the amounts held in prior
years.
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Iv. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

B.

Commitments and Litigation

The Town has been named as defendant in several claims and legal actions. The Town's management
estimates that the potential claims against the Town, which are not covered by insurance, would not
materially affect the financial condition of the Town.

The Town has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and
audit by the grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursement to the grantor
agency for any expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant. Based upon prior experience, Town
management believes such disallowances, if any, will not be material.

In October of 2006, a judgment was entered in a case brought against the Town of Montville and the
Town of Montville Water Pollution Control Authority and a verdict in the amount of $13.5 million
was entered in favor of Rand Whitney on its claims for damages and against the Town on its two
affirmative defenses to damages. The Town plans to appeal the verdict.

Pension Plans

Municipal Employees’ Retirement Fund

The Town makes contributions to one public employee retirement system covering substantially all
municipal employees except teachers and firemen. Teachers are covered by the State Teachers'
Retirement System, which does not require a municipal contribution. The Town firemen have
contributions made to individual retirement accounts.

1. Plan Description

All full-time employees of the Town, except for certified board of education personnel and
firefighters, participate in the Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS). MERS is a
cost sharing multiple employer Public Employee Retirement System (PERS) defined benefit plan
established by the State of Connecticut and administered by the State Retirement Commission to
provide pension benefits for the employees of participating municipalities. MERS is considered
to be a part of the State of Connecticut's financial reporting entity and is included in the State's
financial reports as a pension trust fund. MERS issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the System. That
report may be obtained by writing to the State of Connecticut Retirement and Benefit Services
Division, Office of the State Controller, 55 Elm Street, Hartford, CT 06106.

2. Plan Provisions

Plan provisions are set by Statute of the State of Connecticut. MERS provides retirement
benefits, as well as death and disability benefits. Annual cost of living increases between 3% and
5% are paid to disabled members and nondisabled retired members who have reached age 65. All
benefits vest after 10 years of continuous service. Members who retire after age 55 with 10 years
of continuous service or after 25 years of service, irrespective of age, are entitled to an annual
retirement benefit, payable monthly for life.

51




EXHIBIT K
TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
C. Pension Plans (Continued)

Municipal Employees’ Retirement Fund (Continued)

3. Funding Policy

Covered employees are required by State Statute to contribute 2-1/4% of earnings upon which
Social Security tax is paid plus 5% earnings on which no Social Security tax is paid. Each
participating municipality is required to contribute the amounts necessary to finance the
remaining costs of the plan.

The required and actual contributions for the years ended June 30, 2004, 2005 and 2006 were
$207,215, $219,575 and $331,358, respectively.

D. On-Behalf Payments

The amount recognized in the general fund intergovernmental revenues and education expenditures
for contributions made by the state on-behalf of the Town’s teachers was $1,500,000.

E. Restatements

Beginning net assets were restated as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES
SEWER WATER
DEPARTMENT DEPARTMENT
Net assets — June 30, 2005, as previously reported. ............ $ 25,700,783  $ 37,210,766  $ 4,775,755
To reclassify capital asSets ......veeeerveeeeeereeeereereseeeeeeeenns 8,392.858 10,657.200 385,078
Net assets — July 1, 2005, as restated........ccvrerverrrvernerennnenn $ 34,093,241 $ 47,867,966 $ 5,160,833
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General Fund

The general fund is the principal fund of the Town and is used to account
for all activities of the Town, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund. The general fund accounts for the normal recurring activities
of the Town (i.e., general government, public safety, public works, health,
social services, recreation, education, etc.). These activities are funded
principally by property taxes, user fees and grants from other governmental
units.




SCHEDULE 1
(1 of2)

TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL WITH
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FINAL
BUDGET

TAXES, INTEREST AND LIEN FEES:
General Property takes. .. ... couvesvesvee et et e et e e e e $ 29,800,440 $§ 29,800,440 $ 29,830,883 $ 30,443
Interest and lien fees... ... .c.ooo oo 237,000 237,000 346,297 109,297
Telephone access Ine tax... ... ...ccooeeviviriins e s e e 162,000 162,000 112,175 (49,825)

TOTAL TAXES, INTEREST AND LIEN FEES................... 30,199,440 30,199,440 30,289,355 89,915

INTERGOVERNMENTAL.:
STATE GRANTS FOR SCHOOL AID:
ECSgrant... ... 10,640,844 10,640,844 10,769,869 129,025
Transportation... ... ovveeveeiee it it et cee e e e e e e 483,047 483,047 541,584 58,537
Education of the blind............ccocoovvviiit e s e e 12,800 12,800
Special eduCation..........cc.uvieeiee it iee e e e e e e 150,000 150,000 143,071 (6,929)
Adulteducation... ............ .o e 28,504 28,504 29,924 1,420
Reimbursement middle school bond.............ooevivveevvennnnn. 748,445 748,445 748,448 3

TOTAL STATE GRANTS FOR SCHOOL AID................. 12,050,840 12,050,840 12,245,696 194,856

STATE GRANTS - UNSPECIFIED:

WeEAre. .. .oe oo et ettt e e e

In licu of taXes... ... oo et irrierves e et e e e 1,170,697 1,170,697 1,260,277 89,580
Emergency management Program... ... ... ... cv cee ees ven e venvveae s 6,000 6,000 (6,000)
Tax relief for elderly............ oo vii e e 103,000 103,000 103,482 482
Manufacturer inventory tax... ... ....cooveeeeeee e ieevve e e 155,000 155,000 175,438 20,438
Other grants. .. ... ... oo et et e e e v e s e e e e 113,700 113,700 206,530 92,830
Pequot funds..........co oo iei ittt e e e 1,520,478 1,520,478 1,727,668 207,190

TOTAL STATE GRANTS - UNSPECIFIED.................... 3,068,875 3,068,875 3,473,395 404,520

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL..........ccovvreieeveren . 15,119,715 15,119,715 15,719,091 599,376

CHARGES FOR SERVICES:
LICENSES AND PERMITS:
Conveyance taX. .. ... veeieevun it cee i eee eee et eee e e e s e 275,000 275,000 336,267 61,267
Town clerk £ee8...couuiiiiee i e 175,000 175,000 189,714 14,714
Dog HEenSeS. .. eeees e e e et e e e e e e 6,000 6,000 9,833 3,833
Dogwarden... .......coveeiiiiinioi e e 2,500 2,500 2,325 (175)
Building department... .............ocoetiiiiii e e e e e 300,000 300,000 325,120 25,120
Miscellaneous permits... ...... ... oo eee et it i e e e e 2,500 2,500 5,720 3,220
Transfer station... ... ..o ioieie e 111,000 111,000 184,308 73,308

TOTAL LICENSES AND PERMITS..........ccoveiiiiee e e 872,000 872,000 1,053,287 181,287

(Continued)
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SCHEDULE 1

2 of2)
TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONCLUDED)
VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL WITH
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FINAL
BUDGET
CHARGES FOR SERVICES: (CONTINUED)
REVENUE FROM OTHER AGENCIES:
Planning and zoning and zoning board of appeals............... $ 8,000 § 8,000 $ 17,990 § 9,990
Parks and recreation............ooeivviiiiiiiiiiiee et 60,000 60,000 66,465 6,465
Housing authority.........ccoccoiiviiii e e 19,000 19,000 22,290 3,290
Inland - wetlands..........ccoooiiiiii L
Youth Services program..........ccoeveevvveniinneiveieneeneinennnn, 20,000 20,000 23,808 3,808
TOTAL REVENUE FROM OTHER AGENCIES............... 107,000 107,000 130,553 23,553
CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES:
Tuition - regular.........ovie e e 130,000 130,000 122,488 (7,512)
Tuition - special education...............cuveeuivirnieniiiniinnnes 170,000 170,000 298,614 128,614
School miscellaneous revenue.............oovvveiiiniiiencninnnee. 2,500 2,500 10,335 7,835
Public works department................ccocoviiveeiiiiiiiiiinnnnns 10,000 10,000 12,744 2,744
Commercial Hpping fees......cooeiiiiiiiiiviiviiiiiniireeeicee e 450,000 450,000 468,386 18,386
Assessor's Office.........oviiiii i 4,000 4,000 4,674 674
TOTAL CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES.............. 766,500 766,500 917,241 150,741
MISCELLANEOUS:
St. Bernard's health service...............cocveeviviiicei e 20,000 20,000 23,144 3,144
Police reimbursement... .........cevveveeeevninrierivrieneeneenienennss 175,000 175,000 380,883 205,883
Insurance reimbursement.............occooeiiiieiiiiiniiiieiiee e 45,000 45,000 25,615 (19,385)
Millstone reimbursement..............oooiieiiiiiiiiiire e, 9,500 9,500 10,195 695
‘Welfare reimbursement.............c..ovevvvnennnnns 5,000 5,000 37,923 32,923
Senior citizens' CHNiC.........cvevivvveiiriiniee e e 500 500 (500)
Fire marshal private duty.............coooeiiiiiniiiiiiie 8,000 8,000 3,266 (4,734)
All other miscellaneous. .........covvuviniriieiie i ieeerereenas 20,000 20,000 41,908 21,908
Sale 0f @SSeLS. .. .eoveuuiireeiietceeaeee i cee e e er e 6,000 6,000 (6,000)
Mohegan contributions. .. ......co.oveviiiiiiiiee e e eeeeeeann 500,000 500,000 500,000 -
TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS.......ccooviiieeriieee e e 789,000 789,000 1,022,934 233,934
TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES.......ccooiiiiiiiiieenns 2,534,500 2,534,500 3,124,015 589,515
REVENUE FROM USE OF TOWN MONEY:
Investment INerest. .. .....uuuiueeriuine e e sinannee 150,000 150,000 778,445 628,445
SEWeT SSESSIMENTS. .o vvvvvniieoeevet e eeeveeereateaeeereernrnanens 700,000 700,000 640,788 (59,212)
Water aSSESSIMENTS. .. ceuuntienervinrerreieeeeterevrenrnenenrecnsaeeces 15,000 15,000 94,057 79,057
TOTAL REVENUE FROM USE OF TOWN MONEY......... 865,000 865,000 1,513,290 648,290
TOTAL REVENUES......coiiii i e 48,718,655 48,718,655 50,645,751 1,927,096
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Appropriation of fund balance...............ccceeeiviiiiiiininnn, 163,570 (163,570)
TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES. $ 48,718,655 $ 48,882,225 § 50,645,751 § 1,763,526
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SCHEDULE 2

{1of5)
TOWN OF MONIVILLE, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL WITH
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FINAL
BUDGET
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
MAYOR:
Human services..., $ 119,942 $ 124,242 $ 122,180 $ 2,062
Contracteal services 32,550 33,700 32,786 914
Commodities. 9,025 6,215 5,009 1,206
TOTAL MAYOR .. o ittt e s e cmeses sa e b es e ms e b e an s e 161,517 164,157 159,975 4,182
TOWN COUNCIL:
Human serviees.... 18,500 18,500 18,333 167
Contractual services. . 13,600 13,600 9,141 4,459
COMIMOGLELS. . 1. cv v e s et tre it et e e et e e et e e eenas e eenene sre 4os san st e eae s 1,000 1,000 421 579
TOTAL TOWN COUNCIL.. 33,100 33,100 27,895 5,205
TOWN ATTORNEY. ... ..ot ieiiitit it iatien stemes i s es e seustese en ac e an 2es a0 420 mes semenmes 525,000 745,000 725,280 19,720
TOWN HALL/CENTRAL SERVICES:
Contractual SEIVICES.......veuuennraeeveevvenenarereennen 176,300 187,300 175,961 11,339
Commodities 6,000 6,000 4,715 1,225
Capital. 28,000 28,000 26,820 1,180
TOTAL HALL/CENTRAL SERVICES... ... .. eeeiacemrearssirrnevessesons vesennneenanennes 210,300 221,300 207,556 13,744
PROBATE COURT:
1,300 1,300 477 823
600 600 370 230
TOTAL PROBATE COURT ... ..cutiveitmsmemescr e eesaes aen eesees sem snmsrn sen ses svnans svennes 1,900 1,900 847 1,053
FINANCE DEPARTMENT:
Human services... .. 405,950 405,250 402,563 2,687
Contractual services 122,200 145,375 139,097 6,278
Commodities. 16,950 17,100 16,413 687
Capital....... 1,300 1,175 1,168 7
TOTAL FINANCE DEPARTMENT .......c.coumiris vestis e creeme o e seeaae v sasas aenaaees 546,900 568,900 559,241 9,659
INSURANCE AND TAXES.......c0vetitirecen ceemes sen et sesaes asuas san setsas sen sennrs et sosons s 3,167,911 2,958,046 2912282 45,764
BOARD OF ASSESSMENT APPEALS:
Human services..... 1,200 1,250 1,248 2
Contractual services 1,300 1,300 318 982
COMMOMES. .. coeveseerrae vt e et con e e e ee 200 150 150
TOTAL BOARD OF ASSESSMENT APPEALS.. 2,700 2,700 1,566 1,134
AUDITOR. .. ...ttt ettt et stetes st v vea vae s cea b san sotabs s0s 400 2me sem £ em saees s es ses 0s srmsanmns oa 45,000 45,000 42,400 2,600
OTHER... 213,800 113,800 60,200 53,600
103,650 104,045 103,646 399
6,250 5,600 4,437 1,163
39,200 46,455 42,214 4,241
2,500 2,500 2,500 -
TOTAL TOWN CLERK.... ...coiieieics vttt et st e eam et en cvns aet st seeaaeaanne ees 151,600 158,600 152,797 5,803
REGISTRAR OF VOTERS:
48,550 48,550 48,185 365
4,750 4,300 2,556 1,744
2,300 2,750 1,324 1,426
100 100 100
TOAL REGISTRAR OF VOTERS...... cc.oveveteetver e enmaraessen stens st svses seseasvon aes 55,700 55,700 52,065 3,635
ELECTIONS/REFERENDUM:
Contracttal SEIVICES.......vvvvueieeins ieeeceeee e st sveee een e 19,000 20,670 20,137 533
COMIMOBES... .. cvarevs s e e e ceens e arn et et seneemeas 4,500 2,830 2,577 253
TOTAL ELECTIONS/REFERENDUM 23,500 23,500 22,714 786
LAND USE DEPARTMENT:
Human services... 179,387 179,732 179,696 36
8,900 9,400 7,943 1,457
6,000 5,455 4,659 796
1,000 700 658 42
TOTAL LAND USE DEPARTMENT........c.oui v testrttesces eres e vmv e s saaas sen enenen 195,287 195,287 192,956 2,331
(Continued)
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SCHEDULEFE 2

(2 of5)
TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)
VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL WITH
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FINAL
BUDGET
INLAND WETLANDS COMMISSION:
HIUINAN SEIVICES. ..o ceeeiiiiieiieretiniiee i e eetne e eereneeesuserrreneersnaerssssesbnneranerrnnnes 3 1,200 3 3,300 $ 2,076 3 1,224
CONMIACIIAL SEIVICES. ...uviirrrrieiieeteeeeeeneeraeearererinnsnsaressrrssssasesessassnssssnnsnnssnrses 1,650 3,150 2,133 1,017
COMMOGIES. ..o evrveiiiiiveitttnciie e recettiiieereeeettneeeeseeerresieeereeresnsensaennsnnnssarees 600 -
TOTAL INLAND WETLANDS COMMISSION.......ccitueerrrrieerrinrereneernneeennnes 3,450 6,450 4,209 . 2,241
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION:
Human services 600 600 438 112
Contractual services 465 465 465
COMMOMIES. ....eeuvieiriiiiieeaieeeetirirrer e e rreanatreeaeeennnsesssasrenssnnassessrsnsnssnnrees 900 900 900
TOTAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION......cc.evvurerinnernnnncrnnnns 1,965 1,965 488 1,477
BUILDING BOARD OF APPEALS......ccuiiiiiiiiiieiteireeeiereneereseeersesssnessnnnseenennss 100 100 100
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS:
HIUMNAT SEIVECES. 1. 1 euutireneeeinueaaeriurernerinrennsesneensrrenenrrssssarnnnssnsennsrnsssnesnnsenns 900 1,900 1,832 68
Contractual services. . 2,100 6,300 4,922 1,378
COMMOGIHES. ...e.euuiiresiittiine i eerieri e e e e errrneateeeeereanessreeersrsrrrsssesennsessssennes 100 -
TOTAL ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS.......ocouturieimirernaeernnersesrennieeenneens 3,100 8,200 6,754 1,446
SENIOR CENTER:
HIUTIAN SBIVICES. . e venviuetienrenrenntetieetnierterreerreaeaensennsssssasnssssrnnrenssonssensessssnnses 74,450 75,145 74,177 968
Contractual services. 32,910 40,840 40,120 720
COMMOBIES. ..o eeraeiiesisiiiiiniee e eereeeenicireeererrren e e eecenrcrnseessessassnsssensnnnsnssnses 8,400 9,575 9,552 23
TOTAL SENIOR CENTER........ciiiiuiiiiiutierenueeerniareriaerenaserenesensnreresneennnne 115,760 125,560 123,849 1,711
YOUTH SERVICES:
HUMAN SEIVACES. 1. eevetiiiciiiieiiiccitriie et eeeee i ereet e e arr e e eta e resnneesnnn e rnessennnssrens 115,611 115,610 114,274 1,336
Contractual services. . 43,849 45,850 44,452 1,398
COMIMOMIIES. . . o vvveevuuerenrenereeeeneernserssreteeennssanseensessssssesnasensennsannsnnseenesnnns 6,050 5,450 5,450 -
TOTAL YOUTH SERVICES. .....cetuerttuieiiiiueieiineraeneieresnseeenanseessnssssesesnnnns 165,510 166,910 164,176 2,734
PRIVATE DUTY:
HIIMAN SEIVICES. o.euuviiiiiniiiriiiiereereeuneerttueeeeineeeatsseseessesssnsenssnrennsesnnssennnes 183,000 288,000 270,920 17,080
BUILDING INSPECTOR:
HUMAN SEIVICES. . vvuuiieicciirirneceriicertni s ereeeerrnseeereeerabeernnaneesnnnereensreraesssen 179,300 178,300 175,779 2,521
Contractal SEIVICES. .. ciuuneruuniirirrieertiuerrrtiaeereereereanresstisernseeersssernnessrnonemnnnss 3,600 4,150 2,795 1,355
Commodities...... . 4,400 20,900 19,903 997
CAPHAL +eevvvevrianiinnenes ettt eeeeeeetaenerer e ettt te bbb e nannrrnsrarebrrbaa s san s nn 1,750 1,700 1,655 45
TOTAL BUILDING INSPECTOR. ......cvtueriireniieennarreraecessnsiessnneresnvernsnensnes 189,050 205,050 200,132 4,918
SCHOOL BUILDING COMMITTEE:
HUMAN SETVICES. 1.uuuuuiiiiireeiiiiii i ereieceeecenreeserrutensaeeraeennssroressassansesersensnnssies 2,000 2,000 1,864 136
Commodities 500 500 18 482
TOTAL SCHOOL BUILDING COMMITTEE........ccccuueeireminrnnneeeeresissisesennes 2,500 2,500 1,882 618
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT ......ccuviiiirinierruneeirreneeinieeernnerseeessnne 5,998,650 6,091,725 5,890,184 201,541
(Continued)
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

SCHEDULE 2
(3 of 5)

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

VARIANCE
WITH
FINAL
BUDGET

PUBLIC SAFETY:

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT:
HUMAN SEIVICES. .. ... cv. o cer vt it vt it cen e e e e e e e e eenre v $ 57,600
Contractual SEIVICES. .. ... ... cevee ot e cee cet e e et e e v eer e v e 11,600
Commnodities. .. ... .. vor e rs ot e cir et e e et et e et e e s e e 4,000

57,600
11,603
3,997

3 57,048
10,657
2,721

$ 552
946
1,276

TOTAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT....... ... e coevee v vee ena s 73,200

73,200

70,426

2,774

POLICE DEPARTMENT:
Humarn SEIVICES. .. ... oo ve ven e oot cen e e vt e e e e e e e e e e 1,290,345
Contractual services. 134,350
Commodities... 36,110
CapIal... .. e e et e e e et et e e e e et et s et et e v e s 37,500

1,306,145
147,965
35,985
56,130

1,249,365
145,193
32,756
56,076

56,780
2,772
3,229

54

TOTAL POLICE DEPARTMENT.... ... ... i vee e v e et e e e 1,498,305

1,546,225

1,483,390

62,835

FIRE MARSHAL:
Human services...
Contractual services
COmMOUIIES. .. .. cue et vt ve e e et e e et vt e vt ees aen e s et aes e

69,300
3,000
5,850

60,800
5,103
6,247

60,087
4,009
4,729

713
1,094
1,518

TOTAL FIREMARSHAL... ....co et ettt et e et e et vee e et 78,150

68,825

3,325

ANIMAIL CONTROL:
HUMAN SEIVICES. .. ... oo ive e et e e e e e e et e e e e 40,590
Contractinal SEIVICES. .. ... e ve vt e vae cer et e cvt eet es s cen een s e e 6,805
CommMOMIties. .. ... e ces e vt et e et et et et et e et e e et e 12,425

72,150

41,590
6,555
11,675

40,621
3,408
1,713

969
3,147
9,962

TOTAL ANIMAL CONTROL... .. e o cts et et s e e e e 59,820

59,820

45,742

14,078

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMISSION:
HIUMAN SEIVICES. .. o cee e ce cet et et e v e e et e e e eee et een e e 1,500
Contractual SEIVICES. .. ... .. oo vt vt vet et e crt e een oo et e e ve e eae 2,900
CommMOGILIEs. .. ... ce oo et et et et et e e et et e et e et et e 200

1,800
2,600
200

1,726

44

74
2,600
156

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY COMMISSION... ... .c0 ot veeeen e e 4,600

4,600

1,770

2,830

DISPATCH:
HUman SEIVICES... .. vov vve ven cae ien et e e et e e et et et cen e e 201,000
Contractual services.. 13,400
Commodities... .........eo e eecurvee e e 3,920

201,200
12,700
4,420

196,306
11,543
3,160

4,894
1,157
1,260

TOTAL DISPATCH.... ... e oo e e vt v v s e e e 218,320

218,320

211,009

7311

FIRE PROTECTION:
Human SEIVICES. .. ... cee coe vences vee et st et et e s e e e et e e e 566,665
Contractual services.. 343,505
CommOdIties. .. ... .o escs vt e e e et e et e e e e e ae e 18,950

594,665
343,505
40,625

570,413
332,636
37,037

24,252
10,869
3,588

TOTAL FIRE PROTECTION... ... e o et e e e e e et e e s 929,120

978,795

940,086

38,709

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING:
Contractal SEIVICES. .. ... cueveecvr ee e eae e vt e cae e eae e e e e 51,700
ComMOMILIES. .. .....ecee et es et e e bt e et e e e et e s e e e e 1,500

56,040
1,560

47,615
1,524

8,425
36

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING... ... ... oe e sev e e e e 53,200

57,600

49,139

8,461

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY...... .. coe ot vt e e e e e e e 2,914,715

3,010,710

2,870,387

140,323
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SCHEDULE 2

(4 of 5)
TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)
VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL WITH
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FINAL
BUDGET
PUBLIC WORKS:
PUBLIC WORKS:
HUMAN SEIVICES. ... eeeeeeeeeeeereeeeeneeeeresseesesseesaeen, $ 1,153,892 $ 1,136,502 $ 1,133,716 $ 2,786
383,200 521,390 510,285 11,105
442,200 442,651 425,728 16,923
19,700 26,549 26,011 538
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS....c..cevuiernerverennreennrennsns 1,998,992 2,127,092 2,095,740 31,352
CAMP OAKDALE:
Contracttial SEIVICES. ... .vueveerirerrerrenerranerrniennrerreennes 61,600 62,250 50,700 11,550
ComMOItES. . .eeuveerrnrenrrnrrurereareeireenrensiernreereenaes 6,500 5,850 5,548 302
68,100 68,100 56,248 11,852
102,100 109,100 105,834 3,266
1,014,700 1,029,767 1,025,115 4,652
12,600 6,032 4,818 1,214
20,000 11,501 11,500 1
TOTAL SOLID WASTE......cccvvniinirernrerereneennnnnns 1,149,400 1,156,400 1,147,267 9,133
ENGINEERING SERVICES.....cccuciivienrierieeerinieievnnenens 100,000 95,000 83,759 11,241
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS.....covieecniriieinriicnnenee 3,316,492 3,446,592 3,383,014 63,578
146,358 150,008 149,501 507
700 700 610 90
TOTAL HEALTH....ccieuiiiinrerrerrinrennennenneeernsennns 147,058 150,708 .150,111 597
SOCIAL SERVICES:
HUMAn SEIVICES. ...vuvrurireeeuieraeerranvanrernserrierrenssniesens 23,200 23,756 23,733 23
4,170 4,440 3,524 916
2,800 23,974 23,565 409
TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES........cevviiivirinreenenenes 30,170 52,170 50,822 1,348
RECREATION:
RECREATION:
HUuman SeIVICES. . ..uuveuririneenennraernneneerrererneersseenienens 171,688 178,688 176,648 2,040
Contractual services... 13,360 13,689 9,202 4,487
Commodities......... . 34,011 26,692 25,576 1,116
CaPItal. ....evveeveeieeeieeereeee e crerie e er b e 1,500 1,490 1,479 11
TOTAL RECREATION........cevvvvivnierrnnnrnrrannennnens 220,559 220,559 212,905 7,654
FAIR OAKS BUILDING:
Contractial SEIVICES.....vvvuverrrnrrenesrireerneemnrrrnsreneesens 24,600 27,100 25,716 1,384
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION:
HUmMan ServICes. . ..ceuuuiireeeerieeriiernieernriserereeeeeeeinan, 840 840 732 108
CommOIES. ...ovvevureereiriieeeeiiieevrieeeeieeeeraaee 100 100 22 78
TOTAL PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION.. 940 940 754 186
TOTAL RECREATION......ccucrruremnirrrniennnrennrennens 246,099 248,599 239,375 9,224
(Continued)
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SCHEDULE 2

(5of5)
TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONCLUDED)
VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL WITH
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FINAL
BUDGET
MISCELLANEOUS:
Donations 10 OIZANIZANONS. ...eevueureeereirenverrrrrrensieeetresseeereeeomnnsossessseemnnsenseees 3 72,667 $ 72,667 $ 71,222 $ 1,445
Commission on aging, 100 100 100
TOTAL MISCELLANEOQOUS.. ......coittiiiniierieirriiieeireeeerresseersrsiieesceserenns 72,767 72,767 71,222 1,545
EDUCATION......ootmitiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiectettette e reeeseesentassstresesaanssseesnssssnsnssrssssnsssnns 31,794,709 31,794,709 31,789,167 5,542
CAPITAL OUTLAY ...ttt ee e eeee s eee e e e e eeaeessenssesas 570,000 581,750 373,815 207,935
DEBT SERVICE:
Redemption of debt - prNCIPal. .........cvveuiviriiieiiriiee et eiieeereeseeaeeeeeneeeeeneeees 1,988,773 1,942,673 1,941,917 756
Interest payments, 1,609,222 1,437,322 1,437,310 12
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE.........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeinieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeveseessiaaes e esseenens 3,597,995 3,379,995 3,379,227 768
TOTAL EXPENDITURES......cccuoiiiiiiiimnneeereretntnreaeerrersnneseermmmnnsesssenstnmnanrenes 48,688,655 48,829,725 48,197,324 632,401
OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers out - capital nonrecurting fund...........ccceevverieiiiiiiiiiiise et eeeeeeenns 30,000 52,500 52,500 -
Transfers out - carryfoward fand. ......cccoveviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin e ee e 207,060 (207,060)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES......ccccuutunreirrerrenenniineeirensssertiennnanaenss 30,000 52,500 259,560 (207,060)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES......cecvvuuieeeeerrrreinnnnennen 3 48,718,655 $ 48,882,225 $ 48,456,884 $ 425341
(Concluded)
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Special Revenue Funds
Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure for particular purposes.

Town Aid Road Fund - is used to account for Connecticut Department of Transportation grants relating to improvement to local
roads.

Hot Lunch Program Fund - is used to account for operations of the school lunch program, including the receipt and expenditure
of related federal and state funding.

Special Education Grant Fund - is used to account for U.S. Department of Education and Connecticut Department of Education
grants, as well as local grants relating to education.

Social Services Fund - is used to account for grants and local contributions relating to Social Services.
Youth Service Bureau Fund - is used to account for grants and local contributions related to the youth service bureau.
Black Ash Swamp Road - is used to account for local contributions for improvements to Black Ash Swamp Road.

Learn Not to Burn - educational fund is used to account for monies donated for fire prevention education.

Town Historic Preservation - is used to account for land record receipts earmarked for preservation of Town documents.
Student Fund - is used to account for revenue and expenditures associated with various educational purposes.

Open Space Recreation Fund - is used to account for monies contributed by private developers in lieu of their open space
statutory requirement.

Police Donations - is used to account for monies received through the drug forfeiture program and private contributions and
associated expenditures for educational and enforcement programs.

Capital Projects Funds

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by
proprietary funds and trust funds.

Capital Nonrecurring Fund - is used to account for revenue and expenditures associated with nonrecurring capital items.

Palmertown Water - is used to account for grant receipts and expenditures related to the installation of a water line in the
Palmertown section.

Carryforward Fund - is used to account for miscellaneous construction and renovation projects approved by Town Council not
accounted for in other capital projects funds.
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Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the Town in a trustee capacity for
individuals, private organizations or other governments.

Agency Funds

Agency funds are used to report resources held by the reporting government in a purely custodial
capacity (assets equal liabilities).

Student Activity Fund - is used to receive student funds and promote the educational and student
activities of students.

Performance Bonds - is used to account for performance bonds held by the Town until such time the
bonds are released.




IOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSET AND LIABILITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

SCHEDULE 9

BALANCE BALLANCE
JULY 1, 2005 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS  JUNE 30, 2006
ASSET
CASH:
Student activity fund.........ccooee et i e e $ 273,867 § 598,851 $ 631,476 § 241,242
Performance bonds.............cooviiiiireiees vinie e e 399,467 145,323 169,175 375,615
TOTAL ASSET.....u ittt et et et e eeeeee e e $ 673,334 $ 744,174 $ 800,651 § 616,857
LIABILITY
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:
Student activity fund..............cooin i, $ 273,867 $ 598,851 § 631,476 § 241,242
Performance bonds.........ccociiiiiiiiiiiinii e e e e 399,467 145,323 169,175 375,615
TOTAL LIABILITY ... oo st et ittt e v tre eee eee e eee e e $ 673,334 § 744,174 § 800,651 § 616,857
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Capital Assets Used in the Operation of
Governmental Funds

Capital assets used in governmental fund type operations are recorded at historical cost
or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Donated fixed assets
are valued at their market value on the date donated.




TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES BY SOURCE

SCHEDULE 10

JUNE 30, 2006 AND 2005
2006 2005
(AS RESTATED)
CAPITAL ASSETS:
Lan. ..o oereeiieeree ettt et e st e $ 1,022,518 960,468
CONSITUCHION 1N PrOZIESS....cvervevrererrrarrrecreieererierecressessssonsermssesessens 12,645,752 6,344,087
Land improvements............cecovreerruereresrererseresesseesssessssssessssesennns 952,055 931,355
Buildings and improvements..............coveeveecerereesvrseceseseessonnsnens 30,131,988 30,124,263
Machinery and eqUIPIMENL..........c.c.corvvvreeveereere e eeeeseessessesane 9,300,910 9,048,042
InfrastriCture. ..o v e 15,593,015 15,593,015
TOTAL......c ettt e s s s sseesa e ssesssssorsessessessessesresnesssen $ 69,646,238 63,001,230
INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS BY SOURCE:
General fund..........occoeveveerineneceese e $ 21,614,345 21,271,001
Capital projects fUnds........cceveeieceerieciercrenrerriseereeese s 46,206,668 39,905,004
ContribULIONS. ... ceeiiereicerieecceeeere e e s e ee e enes 1,825,225 1,825,225
TOTAL... ettt seee e stevs et saretas e ssesstsssessesseessesesseesesnen $ 69,646,238 63,001,230
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SCHEDULE 12

TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

BALANCE
JULY 1, 2005 DEPARTMENTAL BALANCE
(ASRESTATED) ADDITIONS TRANSFERS DELETIONS  JUNE 30, 2006

GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
Real estate not allocated to specific function... ...............ccoeeeueeeeeennn. $ 4218987 $ 110,100 $ $ 43,050 $ 4,281,037
TOWN COUNCIL... ... oeovis e et e e e e e e e e e e 37,500 37,500
Mayor, Finance and Information Technology.................... o ieiune e 66,097 26,435 21,700 14,891 99,341

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT.... ... ..o cct vt veevre e v e 4,322,584 136,535 21,700 62,941 4,417,878

PUBLIC SAFETY:
POLCE. .. ... e et e e e e e e e e 604,767 86,362 26,828 664,301
Animal control..................... 24,036 24,036
Building............ 28,072 17,010 45,082
Fire and diSpateh... ... ... vovvuecen e e e et e e e e e e e 3,397,315 75,232 (21,700) 3,450,847

TOTALPUBLIC SAFETY ...... ottt et et e et et vt e 4,054,190 178,604 (21,700) 26,828 4,184,266

PUBLIC WORKS:
Public WOrKS... ... .ot e et e e e e e 18,265,817 123,204 7,200 18,381,821
Transfer/RecyCling. .. ... oo oo e e e e cre et et et e e e e e 384,588 384,588

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS... ..ottt ittt e e et e e e e e 18,650,405 123,204 7,200 18,766,409

HUMAN SERVICES.... ...ttt ie ettt it et et et vt e e e e s s aan e 1,697,532 3,700 1,703,232

RECREATION ...t it et e e ettt et e et et et e et e e e s 2,663,141 2,663,141

LAND USE ..ot e et et et et et e e e e et et s e e 19,647 17,010 36,657

EDUCATION ... ... n ittt e e et vt e et et cve e e e e ven e 31,593,731 6,469,924 189,000 37,874,655

TOTAL... oo et e et e e et e e et s e s e e 3 63,001,230 $ 6,930,977 § - 3 285,969 § 69,646,238
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Statistical Section




TABLE 1

TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT
LAST FOUR YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
FISCAL YEAR
2006 2005 2004 2003

Governmental activities:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt... ... $ 26,910,256 $ 10,845,840 $ 12,526,833 $ 1,326,996

Restricted... ....oooviiiiive e e 2,087,650 3,688,455 1,253,584 1,127,220

Unrestricted..........ooceveee e, 13,878,311 9,467,293 7,325,563 18,526,355
Total Governmental activities net assets............... 42,876,217 24,001,588 21,105,980 20,980,571
Business-type activities:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt...... 53,040,139 42,424,306 43,486,280 44,608,852

Unrestricted... ... i oo e cie et e (298,857) (437,785) (481,210) (146,127)
Total Business-type activities net assets............... 52,741,282 41,986,521 43,005,070 44,462,725
Total Net Assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt... ... 79,950,395 53,270,146 56,013,113 45,935,848

Restricted. .. .ooovv e iieee e e et et e 2,087,650 3,688,455 1,253,584 1,127,220

Unrestricted.........cooeeveiiiiine e 13,579,454 9,029,508 6,844,353 18,380,228
Total Net ASSetS.......oo e verne vt iee e v vee e e 3 95,617,499 $ 65,988,109 3 64,111,050 $ 65,443,296
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TABLE 2

(10f2)
TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
LAST FOUR YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
FISCAL YEAR
2006 2005 2004 2003
Expenses:
Governmental activities:
General GOVEIMIMENt................ccooiiieee e, $ 3,931,911 $ 3,724,022 $ 5,509,757 $ 4,990,925
Public safety......... . 4,287,478 3,751,428 2,771,616 2,740,787
Public works......... . 5,672,769 4,821,315 3,880,916 3,449,279
Health and welfare 295,725 264,921 133,733 122,771
Social services.. 76,864 44,650 53,011 17,860
Recreation....... . 441,864 559,378 320,877 173,568
Miscellaneous. .........co.vvvvevriintiii e e e e 71,222 65,299 69,126 72,946
Education.......ccccoovveriieies et 34,311,294 32,208,273 33,346,626 33,924,516
Interest eXPenSe. .. ..o oiuiries et ae e 1,232,926 1,389,632 978,905 1,092,241
Total Governmental activities eXpenses................cc.vveunenn. 50,322,053 46,828,918 47,064,567 46,584,893
Business-type activities:
Sewer department... ............veeeieiie i e 5,026,168 5,356,111 5,132,337 4,997,377
Water department... ................coooiiiiiin e, 219,455 137,784 159,534 178,148
Total Business-type activities eXpenses................ccceevervuennnn. 5,245,623 5,493,895 5,291,871 5,175,525
Total EXPENSES.....c.evuiiieteriireiiiii i iieceeee e e e e anen 55,567,676 52,322,813 52,356,438 51,760,418 ,
Program Revenues:
Governmental activities:
Charges for services:
General GOVEIMUMENt.............coviiiiiiriieeeiie e eee e e 1,420,573 1,450,575 1,405,573 1,183,232
Public safety...................... 400,064 145,725 102,720 70,848
Public works...... 468,851 295,907 515,602 471,394
Health and welfare. 97,459 81,608 38,840 37,139
Social services... 37,923 28,481 45,990
Recreation...... 66,465 75,835 62,173 63,328
Miscellaneous. 41,908 89,720 29,769 8,579
Education......................... . 1,161,216 1,065,762 1,326,441 3,521,631
Operating grants and contributions...................cccveeveunnnnns 15,273,934 13,782,107 13,311,498 13,457,437
Capital grants and contributions................cceeeueeeeenenenann. 5,000,889 2,363,050 268,204 740,728
Total governmental activities program revenues.................... 23,969,282 19,350,289 17,089,301 19,600,306
(Continued)
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TABLE?2

2 of2)
TOWN OF MONTVILLE. CONNECTICUT
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
LAST FOUR YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
FISCAL YEAR
2006 2005 2004 2003
Business-type activities:
Charges for services:
Sewer department.............c..covriineiviiee e eee e $ 4,245,876 3 4,376,948 $ 3,818,694 $ 4,221,815
Water department........... [P 218,981 90,139 8,580 199,612
Capital grants and contributions
Water department............ocoeeevvneiiiieniiivnieeiieceeeeinnss 480,084

Total business-type activities program revenues.................... 4,944,941 4,467,087 3,827,274 4,421,427
Total Program revenues. .. ..........o.oovueniueeieceeeeeeeeeseenas 28,914,223 23,817,376 20,916,575 24,021,733
Net (Expense)/Revenue:

Governmental aCtiVIteS. ............oeeeeieviriiireerie e e (26,352,771) (27,478,629) (29,975,266) (26,984,587)

BUSINESS-EYDPE ACHVIEES. .. ... o.evevereeeeeeerieeeeeeeeeee e enees (300,682) (1,026,808) (1,464,597) (754,098)
Total Net EXDEDSE........vveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e ereere e eereeseee e (26,653,453) (28,505,437) (31,439,863) (27,738,685)
General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets:

Governmental activities:

Property taXes. .. c...ooioriie it e e 30,123,573 28,276,739 27,493,304 24,538,801

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs..... 3,473,395 2,802,448 2,480,305 2,881,357

Investment iNCOME.... .......c.ccouttivriitiee e e e e 1,538,779 994,245 127,066 194,227
Total Governmental activities ..................cccoooiviiiiiineeenn. 35,135,747 - 32,073,432 30,100,675 27,614,385
Business-type activities:

Investment INCOMME. ... .....cc.veriiiiieeiieeie e ee e, 13,165 8,259 6,942 7,511
Total General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets......... 35,148,912 32,081,691 30,107,617 27,621,896
Change in Net Assets:

Governmental activities................cc.eviviinieiiiieeee e, 8,782,976 4,594,803 125,409 629,798

BuSINESS-tyPE ACHVIEES. .. ... ev. v eeeeeeeeereeeeeeeee e eeeeeenas (287,517) (1,018,549) (1,457,655) (746,587)
Total Change in Net ASSEtS.........oceeevierveeeerieerieieeeee e e $ 8,495,459 3 3,576,254 $ (1,332,246) 3 (116,789)

(Concluded)
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TABLE 10

TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF DEBT LIMITATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
(UNAUDITED)
TOTAL TAX COLLECTIONS (including interest and lien fees) - BASE FOR DEBT LIMITATION COMPUTATION.......ov oo oo $ 30,207,006
GENERAL URBAN PENSION
PURPOSE SCHOOLS SEWERS RENEWAL DEFICIT
DEBT LIMITATION:
2 1A HMES DASE. .. oo it e e e e e, $ 67,965,764 $ 3 3 $
4 1/2 times base... 135,931,527
33/4times base..........occeecvevin i ie e 113,276,273
31/4timesbase............coooe L 98,172,770
3 HIMES DASE... ... ee vt e ies e e e e et et e e et e e e 90,621,018
TOTAL DEBT LIMITATION..........cooiiie v e e 67,965,764 135,931,527 113,276,273 98,172,770 90,621,018
INDEBTEDNESS:
Bonds payable................ccooevvnennnn. 7,905,000 13,750,000 1,660,000
Less amount to be provided by the State. .. (2,790,275)
Less sewer assessments receivable................cooooeveieeveeiee e (1,660,000)
TOTAL INDEBTEDNESS... .....cooi it viiiee e e ese v e et 7,905,000 10,959,725 - - -
DEBT LIMITATION IN EXCESS
OF OUTSTANDING DEBT... ... oot e e e e e e e e 3 60,060,764 $ 124,971,802 $ 113,276,273 $ 98,172,770 $_ 90,621,018
NOTES: (1) The total of the above indebtedness amounts to: $ 18,864,725
In no event shall total indebtedness exceed seven times the base for debt limitation computation: $ 211,449,042

(2) There is no overlapping debt for the Town of Montville.

(3) Currently, outstanding bonded debt for water of $73,955 and outstanding bonded debt for sewer of $3,655,000
are excluded from the debt limitation schedule, in accordance with the General Statutes of Connecticut.
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TABLE 11

JOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
LAST TEN YEARS
YEAR NET DEBT LEGAL TOTAL
ENDED DEBT APPLICABLE DEBT NET DEBT
JUNE 30 LIMIT TO LIMIT MARGIN APPLICABLE
1997 3 269,430,412 28,525,000 $ 240,905,412 10.59%
1998 252,151,764 25,305,000 226,846,764 10.04%
1999 268,473,302 23,015,000 245,458,302 8.57%
2000 278,209,609 21,280,000 256,929,609 7.65%
2001 359,343,646 14,151,451 345,192,195 3.94%
2002 379,404,317 14,077,240 365,327,077 3.71%
2003 405,557,684 14,270,853 391,286,831 3.52%
2004 458,942,279 10,902,543 448,039,736 2.38%
2005 483,180,751 19,887,451 463,293,300 4.12%
2006 505,967,352 18,864,725 487,102,627 3.73%
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TABLE 14

JOWN OF MONTVILLE. CONNECTICUT

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

FULL -TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES AS OF JUNE 30

FUNCTION / PROGRAM 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2002

GENERAL GOVERNMENT:

Mayor .....veeieiiiiiiieie e 3 3 3 3 3 3

Finance............cccococveeeiiiiniiinnn, 9 9 9 9 9 9

Planning...........occooeeiiiiiiiiiii 4 4 4 4 4 4

Parks and recreation. .. 5 5 5 5 5 5

Town Clerk................... 2 2 2 2 2 2

Senior & Social Services 3 2 2 2 2 2

Building .........coooviiiii 4 3 3 3 3 3

Other......ccoovviriiiiiii 6 6 5 5 4 4
POLICE:

Officers.....ooovvvniiiviniiiiicee 21 21 21 21 21 21

Animal Control e

Civilians...........coooovvviiiiiiiin 1 1 1 1 1 1
FIRE:

Firefighters and officers.................... 1 11 11 11 11 11

Civilians.......c..ccooeviviveiiein 4 4 4 4 4 4
PUBLIC WORKS:

Engineering................cc.ooeeeeeeennnl.

Highway.................... 24 24 24 24 24 24

Building maintenance.... e 4 4 4 4 4 4

Transfer station.................. - 4 4 4 4 4 4
BOARD OF EDUCATION..................... 616 613 610 606 603 603
SEWER DEPARTMENT....................... 13 13 13 13 13 13
TOTAL.......ciiiiiiiieeee e 736 731 727 723 719 719

SOURCE: Town Budget
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

(UNAUDITED)

TABLE 15

FUNCTION / PROGRAM

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30

2006

2005

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Town Clerk:
Vital records iSsued..........ouoeiiiiiiiir e e
Licenses issued

Land Use Office:
Planning & zoning application activity................covevevennnveiiceereiiseeeaennns
Inland/Wetlands application activity................c.oooovvveneenn..

Finance Office:
Current tax levy collection rate..............coveeeiiiiieiiieie e cee e e vea e
Number A/P checks issued......
Number payroll checks issued
Direct deposit adVICES........vvuvniiivieviriie it e et e e e

PUBLIC SAFETY:
Fire:
EMErgency TeSPONSES. .. ... oovuetiveirenieereiiseeiieeitees e eeeaneesare eeeeteaeeeeeons
Fires extinguished....
Inspections....
Police:
PhysSical AITESES. ... eeevnmieiit i e cee e e et et e e ee e e e eeerre s en e e
Motor vehicle a6CIAENtS.... ... ...coevrieeieeiie et e s
Traffic VIOIAtoNS. .. ....ce.vviviiities e et e e e e e
Animal Control:
COMPIANLS. .. ... .ot et e ee e e e et e e et e e tae e
Dogs processed....
Building Department:
Number of permits ISSUEd.............oeieiiiiiieire e e ettt ee e veees
Certificates of occupancy issued...............oovvvviiiiiiiiiie e el

PUBLIC WORKS:
Street resurfacing (MIlES)..........coeii it e e e e

PARKS AND RECREATION:
Summer camp enrollment... ... .........oeoiiiiiiitieriee e eee e
Recreation program enrollment. .. .......co.eeuueeeeierieeirriee e iee e aer e ven s
Trip enrollmMent. . .....coeeiuitiet it cee e ee e e eee vt e e e ere e e s ea s

HEALTH AND WELFARE:
Number of permits/licenses issued.............ccoceuvenmeeieiieenneernnnnen.
Number of plan reviews.............
Number of tests conducted. .
Number of health InSPECtions.............veuveneeieriieieeene i e ee e e e vee e

EDUCATION:
Enrollment:
High SCHOOL. ...t oot et e e
Middle school......... .
Elementary SChools..........c.eviieiinirriit e eer et e e

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

WATER FUND:
NEW COMNECHONS. .......ouieiiiiit i ee e cee e et st e aeee e et e e e veeaee e
Average daily consumption
(thousands of BalloNs)..........ccveeveenurieirieeee i e e et ee e
Peak daily consumption
(thousands of gallONS)..........ceeeiiiuieioiiie e e et e ee e ans

SEWER FUND:
Average daily B.O.D.
Average daily T.S.S......ouiiiiiiiii et ittt e e e
Average daily influent sewage treatment
(thousands of allons)........c.oevviirritiieier i e e

TRANSFER STATATION:
Refuse collected annually (in tONS)............oeeveeveeerveeiee st e eeeeee .
Recyclables collecteted annually (in tons)..........coeceueieveivrieeiveenireinenane

SOURCES: Various Town Departments
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1,126
2,489
6,586

381

97.66%
3,445
3,481
4,927

2,187

635

556
133

1,418
202

522
1,268

253
132
527
262

898
766
1,314

16,063
3,647

2,445

10,102
4,565

1,304
2,582
9,348

429
98.51%
3,482

3,589
4,602

2251
525
275

2,503

502
103

1,360
241

214
152
546
245

864
720
1,333

14,349
4,370

2,606

10,287
5,357




TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST TEN YEARS

TABLE 16

(UNAUDITED)
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30
FUNCTION / PROGRAM 2006 2005
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
PARKS AND RECREATION:
ACTEAZE. ..ottt 160 160
Playgrounds. .........coieiiiiiiiiiiiniis e 3 3
TENIHS COUIS. ... euinitie it e e eeeas 8 8
Baseball/softball diamonds.................oooeiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 3 3
Soccer/football fields.........ccoeeieiiiiiiiiii e 4 4
COMMUNILY CENEOIS. . ...vuvrnernreenienrenerniieeteetereernrnerseaneenennes 1 1
PUBLIC SAFETY:
Fire Protection:
SHALIONS. ..v et iiiieie et 4 4
Pieces of equipment. ......coccuviiiiieiiiiiieii e 29 29
Police Department:
SEAtIONS. ..ot 1 1
Police vehicles........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiii 21 21
PUBLIC WORKS:
Highway Department:
Streets (MIleS).....oeuieiiriiriirii i 117 117
Public Works vehicles........ccuverviiiiuniiniiiiiiiiieeee, 40 39
EDUCATION:
Number of high sch0ols.........oiiiiiiiniiiii e, 1 1
Number of middle schools.........oceeviieniiniiniiiiiiiiii e, 1 1
Number of elementary sSChoOIS........c.covevveiieiiniiiiiiiieiiiieeenees 3 3
WATER FUND:
Water mains (Miles).......oouereiriiriiiiiieie e, 10.5 10.5
Fire hydrants.......c..covuiiiiniiiiiin e 140 135
SEWER FUND:
Sewer mains (IMiles).......cveevierieiiiiniiiii 63 63
Treatment capacity (thousands of gallons/day)...............c........... 4,500 4,500
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
Town bUldings. ...c.ovvviniiniiec e 4 4
Number of vehciles.........ovvviiueiiiiiieii e 11 11

SOURCES: Various Town Departments

NOTE: Indicators are not available for the Finance, Health and Welfare and Land Use departments.
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